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AGENDA 

 

1. STANDARD ITEMS        

 
1.1 

 
Introduction by Trust Chair  

  
Trust Chair 
 

 
 

1.2 Apologies for Absence  Trust Chair 
 

 

1.3 Declarations of Interest 
 

 Trust Chair 
 

 

1.4 Minutes of the Kent Community Health 
NHS Foundation Trust Board meeting 
held on 11 November 2021 
 

 Trust Chair  

1.5 Matters Arising from the Kent Community 
Health NHS Foundation Trust Board 
meeting held on 11 November 2021 
 

 Trust Chair  

1.6 
 

Patient/Service Impact Story  
Annie’s story and the Expert Patient 
Programme 
 

 Chief Nurse 
 

 
 

1.7 
 

Trust Chair’s Report 

 Appointment of non-executive 
directors and associate non-
executive director 

 

 Trust Chair Verbal 

1.8 
 

Acting Chief Executive’s Report  Acting Chief Executive  

2. BOARD ASSURANCE        

     
2.1 Board Assurance Framework 

 
 Director of Corporate 

Services 
 

 

2.2 Infection Prevention and Control Board 
Assurance Framework 
 

 Chief Nurse  

2.3 Audit and Risk Committee Chair’s 
Assurance Report 
 

 Deputy Chair, Audit 
and Risk Committee  
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2.4 Charitable Funds Committee Chair’s 
Assurance Report 

 2020/21 Annual Report and 
Accounts 

 Confirmed Minutes of the 
Charitable Funds Committee 
meetings of 14 July and 17 
November 2021 
 

 Charitable Funds 
Committee Member 
 

 

2.5 Finance, Business and Investment 
Committee Chair’s Assurance Report 
 

 Chair of Finance, 
Business and 
Investment Committee 
 

 

2.6 
 
 

Quality Committee Chair’s Assurance 
Report 

 Chair of Quality 
Committee 

 

2.7 
 
 

Strategic Workforce Committee Chair’s 
Assurance Report 
 

 Chair of Strategic 
Workforce Committee 
 

 

2.8 
 

Learning From Deaths Report  Medical Director  

3. PERFORMANCE 2021/22 

     
3.1 
 
 

Integrated Performance Report 
 
 

 Acting Director of 
Finance 
Executive Directors 
 

 

4. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

     
4.1 Any other items of business previously 

notified to the Chair 
 

 Trust Chair  

5. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC RELATING TO THE AGENDA 

  
 

   

 DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 

 

The next Public Board meeting will take place on 25 May 2022 in The Boardroom, The Oast, 
Hermitage Court, Hermitage Lane, Barming, Maidstone, Kent ME16 9NT.  This meeting will 
be broadcast to the public on MS Teams. 
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UNCONFIRMED Minutes  

of the Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust (KCHFT) Board Meeting 
held on Thursday 11 November 2021  

The Boardroom, The Oast, Hermitage Court, Hermitage Lane, Barming, 
Maidstone ME16 9NT  

  
Meeting held in Public via MS Teams Live Event 

 
 

 
 
Present: John Goulston, Trust Chair (Chair) 
 Pippa Barber, Non-Executive Director 
 Paul Bentley, Chief Executive 
 Paul Butler, Non-Executive Director 
 Peter Conway, Non-Executive Director 
 Prof. Francis Drobniewski, Non-Executive Director 
 Gordon Flack, Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Finance 
 Dr Sarah Phillips, Medical Director 
 Claire Poole, Deputy Chief Operating Officer (representing 

Pauline Butterworth, Chief Operating Officer) 
 Victoria Robinson-Collins, Director of People and 

Organisational Development 
 Gerard Sammon, Director of Strategy and Partnerships 
 Dr Mercia Spare, Chief Nurse  
 Nigel Turner, Non-Executive Director  
In Attendance: Gina Baines, Committee Secretary (minute-taker) 
 Natalie Davies, Director of Corporate Services 
  
  

 
11/11/01 Introduction by Trust Chair 

 
 Mr Goulston welcomed everyone present to the Public Board meeting of 

Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust).  
 

11/11/02 Apologies for Absence 
 

 Apologies were received from Sola Afuape, Non-Executive Director; 
Pauline Butterworth, Chief Operating Officer and Bridget Skelton, Non-
Executive Director. 
 
The meeting was quorate. 
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11/11/03 Declarations of Interest 

 There were no other conflicts of interest declared other than those formerly 
recorded. 
 

11/11/04 Minutes of the Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust Board 
meeting held on 9 September 2021 
 

 The minutes were read for accuracy. 
 
The Board AGREED the Minutes. 
 

11/11/05 Matters arising from the Kent Community Health NHS Foundation 
Trust Board meeting held on 9 September 2021 
 

 The Board RECEIVED the Matters Arising. 
 

11/11/06 Patient/Service Impact Story - Annie’s story and the Expert Patient 
Programme 
 

 This was not broadcast due to a technical issue. It was agreed that it would 
be brought to the next Public Board meeting in February 2022. 
Action – Dr Spare 
 

11/11/07 Trust Chair’s Report 
 
Mr Goulston presented the verbal report to the Board for information. 
 

 Mr Goulston had previously presented his report at the Council of 
Governors meeting on 3 November 2021. 
 
It was noted that the Mr Cedi Frederick had been appointed as the 
substantive chair of the Kent and Medway integrated care system (ICS) 
from 1 November. Mr Goulston would be stepping down from his role as 
interim chair of the ICS at the end of November following a handover 
period to Mr Frederick. The appointment of the Kent and Medway ICS 
Chief Executive was underway and an announcement would be made 
shortly. The Kent and Medway Integrated Partnership Board (ICP) had 
ratified the second draft submission of the proposed governance and 
architecture framework for the ICS. The Trust Board would have the 
opportunity to review and comment on it in the new year and Mr Goulston 
proposed that it should come to a Board meeting in January or February.  
Action – Mr Goulston 
 
The final version of the framework along with the ICS constitution had to 
be submitted to NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/I) at the beginning of 
March 2022 in order that it could be approved by the end of that month. 
 
Mr Goulston had also undertaken two We Care visits to Trust services. He 
had visited the Looked After Children service whose work had increased 
significantly because of the increasing number of asylum-seeking children 
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entering Kent. He had also visited the East Sussex School Nursing 
Service. 
 
The Board RECEIVED the Trust Chair’s Report. 
 

11/11/08 Chief Executive’s Report 
 
Mr Bentley presented the report to the Board for information. 
 

 
 

In response to a comment from Ms Barber on the Trust’s successful 
programme to vaccinate children and young people aged 12 to 15 against 
COVID-19, Ms Poole responded that she was pleased with how the 
programme had been delivered at pace and it was on track to conclude on 
10 December. There had been concern about the capacity of the 
Immunisation Team to deliver the children’s flu vaccination programme in 
parallel but this had gone well and again would conclude on time. She also 
wished to celebrate how well the Immunisation Team had supported the 
special schools with vaccinating children with vulnerabilities and special 
needs. 
 
In response to Ms Barber’s comment on the Trust’s recent Quality 
Improvement conference which she had attended, Dr Phillips agreed that 
she would circulate to the Board a recording of the keynote speech by 
Hugh McCaughey, NHS Director for Improvement. She also confirmed that 
she would be arranging a further Board seminar on Quality Improvement in 
the near future. 
Actions – Dr Phillips 
 
In response to a question from Mr Turner as to when the Board would 
have the opportunity to meet Mr Frederick, Mr Goulston confirmed that he 
would be extending an invitation to him and the new chief executive of the 
Kent and Medway ICS to attend a Board meeting in the New Year. 
Action – Mr Goulston 
 
Mr Flack reported that the Trust had been shortlisted for two national 
awards. One award related to staff engagement in health and well-being 
and the second was around partnership working in the ICP in Medway and 
Swale. The winners would be announced on 18 November. 
 
Mr Goulston commented on the recent announcement that all frontline 
NHS staff would need to be fully vaccinated against COVID-19 by spring 
2022, and it was agreed that the Board would be updated on progress at 
its Public Board meeting in February. 
Action – Mr Bentley 
 
The Board RECEIVED the Chief Executive’s Report. 
 

11/11/09 Board Assurance Framework (BAF)  
 
Ms Davies presented the report to the Board for assurance. 
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 With regards to the actions for risk 113 (the vaccination programme) 
although these had been completed they would be revisited as the 
programme was still live. It was noted that the actions that had been 
owned by Ms Louise Norris, the outgoing Director of Workforce, 
Organisational Development and Communications would be transferred to 
Ms Robinson-Collins. 
 
In response to a question from Mr Conway regarding risk 110 (partner 
working) and the position with Kent County Council (KCC) funding and 
social care partnership pathways, Ms Poole reflected that it was an 
ongoing, live dynamic conversation with system partners including the 
local authority and the clinical commissioning group on a weekly basis. 
KCC had an action plan in place to drive up domiciliary care provision and 
there had been confirmation of funding to resource a KCC winter team task 
force to enable this across Kent and Medway. The CCG had also received 
additional monies in the H2 funding announced earlier in the week to 
support additional capacity in social care. All stakeholders agreed that the 
provision of domiciliary care was the biggest risk this winter.  
 
In response to a question from Mr Conway as to the direction that the 
operational metrics were taking and what that meant for the Trust and the 
wider economy, Ms Poole confirmed that delays in discharge were 
fluctuating but stable. The system had been on a heightened status for 
several weeks which put pressure on teams. Domiciliary care provision 
was a challenge both locally and nationally.  
 
The Board RECEIVED the Board Assurance Framework. 

  
11/11/10 Finance, Business and Investment Committee Chair’s Assurance 

Report 
 
Mr Butler presented the report to the Board for assurance. 
 

 Mr Flack confirmed that the Business Development Strategy would be 
discussed at the Leadership Forum at the end of November and then by 
the Board at a future meeting.  
Mr Goulston confirmed that a new date for the  Board meeting in March 
2022 was being considered to approve the 2022/23 budget. 
 
The Board RECEIVED the Finance, Business and Investment Committee 
Chair’s Assurance Report. 
 

11/11/11 Quality Committee Chair’s Assurance Report 
 
Ms Barber presented the report to the Board for assurance. 
 

 In response to a question from Mr Conway regarding the Dental Service 
waiting times performance particularly in London, Ms Poole responded that 
overall waiting times were improving. The Inner North East London service 
was a marginal outlier but it was improving too. The Quality Committee 
would receive a full report at its meeting in December. She had some 
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concerns that dental service waiting times might plateau and had therefore 
requested a forward trajectory from the service.   
In response to a comment from Mr Conway about reports that children’s 
dental/oral health had deteriorated due to the restricted availability of 
dental services generally, Ms Poole responded that the Dental Service had 
been triaging all patient requests to ensure that all urgent care was 
scheduled as a priority.  
 
The Board RECEIVED the Quality Committee Chair’s Assurance Report. 
 

11/11/12 
 

Strategic Workforce Committee Chair’s Assurance Report 
 
Mr Turner presented the report to the Board for assurance. 

  
In response to a question from Ms Barber as to what progress was being 
made with safer staffing in community services and whether there was a 
plan for them, Dr Spare confirmed that the Trust was progressing with a 
number of initiatives.  This included participating in an NHSE/I programme 
looking at acuity and dependency safer staffing which would be ready to 
be piloted shortly in the Trust.  There would be opportunities to learn from 
the pilot and identify what actions should be taken. The executive had also 
agreed to the next phase of funding for international recruitment which 
would focus on community services rather than the community hospitals. 
The Strategic Workforce Committee would monitor its progress. 
 
In response to a question from Mr Sammon regarding why staff were not 
getting involved in environmental projects at work, Ms Davies confirmed 
that there was a lot of work going on and clear enthusiasm amongst staff, 
but energies were currently focused on the immediate pressures around 
healthcare delivery rather than declaring champion status. Despite this, the 
Sustainability Team continued to encourage and support staff to get 
involved in whatever way they could. 
 
In response to a question from Mr Conway regarding the high turnover 
rate, Ms Robinson Collins reflected that there was no doubt about the 
psychological impact of the pandemic on the workforce. The organisational 
development business partners were analysing the exit data to identify the 
drivers for staff leaving the Trust and where the hotspots were. Many trusts 
were starting to see a similar trend. The key work for the Trust was to 
engage with its workforce to support them in their work. There were a large 
number of well-being resources in place but it was important to continue to 
reach out to staff to raise awareness of these resources and encourage 
staff to use them to keep them well. 
 
In response to a question from Mr Conway as to whether people were 
leaving the NHS, Ms Robinson Collins indicated that further work needed 
to be undertaken to encourage staff to remain in the NHS but also for the 
Trust to engage actively with its vaccination bank staff who would like to 
continue to work for the NHS. Mr Bentley added that turnover levels and 
patterns are variable within the Trust depending on the team and its 
pandemic experience. It was agreed that a report would be brought to the 
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Strategic Workforce Committee and the Board on the outlook for the Trust 
over the next six months. 
Action – Ms Robinson Collins 
 
The Board RECEIVED the Strategic Workforce Committee Chair’s 
Assurance Report. 
 

11/11/13 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
 
Ms Robinson-Collins presented the report to the Board for approval. 
 
In response to a question from Ms Barber as to whether the staff networks 
would have a role in the oversight of the effectiveness of the strategy, Ms 
Robinson Collins indicated that they would. The implementation of the 
strategy itself would be assured by the Strategic Workforce Committee. Mr 
Bentley added that the networks played a specific role and key role in the 
organisation as a critical friend. It was too early to say what role they would 
play in overseeing the strategy but he suggested that part of it would be in 
challenging the Trust to be an even better employer. Mr Turner reflected 
that the Board needed to agree its role in delivering the strategy and would 
spend time listening to the networks and mapping out the specific role of 
the Board as exemplars. Mr Bentley clarified that it was for the 
organisation, including the Board in its leadership to deliver the strategy 
and the staff networks to be part of the solution. It would be delivered at 
pace and in an inclusive way.  
 
In response to a question from Mr Flack as to the timescale for introducing 
the mentoring programme, Ms Robinson Collins explained that this would 
be starting in the near future now that national funding which had been on 
hold due to the pandemic was being released. Dr Spare commented that 
despite the lack of funding the Trust could push forward the mentoring of 
senior staff by colleagues from a Black or Minority Ethnic background. 
 
Mr Turner highlighted that there was an interplay in the strategy reflecting 
equality both for staff as well as patients and suggested that both elements 
required scrutiny. Mr Goulston agreed that the Strategic Workforce 
Committee would monitor the staff element while the Quality Committee 
would monitor progress with addressing health inequalities in the 
community. It was confirmed that the Board should receive a report on 
both aspects through the Board Committee Assurance Reports.  
Action – Ms Robinson-Collins / Dr Spare 
 
The Board APPROVED the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. 
 
[Post-meeting action: Mr Goulston would take the strategy to the Council of 
Governors meeting in January 2022 for noting] 
 

11/11/14 Winter Plan  
 
Ms Poole presented the report to the Board for information. 
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The Winter Plan had been approved by the Board at its October Board 
meeting.  
 
Additional system level funding had been confirmed and the Trust was 
waiting for clarification as to whether it would be recurrent or for winter 
only.  
 
In response to a question from Mr Butler about the integrated management 
meeting (IMM), Ms Poole explained that it currently met twice a week 
where it reviewed the sitreps. These could also be reviewed on a daily 
basis by members and if there were any concerns, they could contact the 
relevant lead or trigger an IMM to be escalated. She anticipated that the 
IMM would operate daily over the winter.  
 
In response to a request from Mr Butler that the Board should be alerted to 
any operational ‘shocks’ to the Trust in between Board meetings, Mr 
Bentley agreed to define the threshold which would trigger an escalation 
by exception to the Board and put a process in place. 
Action – Mr Bentley 
 
Ms Barber confirmed that the Quality Committee had oversight of the 
social and domiciliary care risk and the numbers of delayed discharges 
from the community hospitals on the BAF. However, the Board was not so 
well sighted on the discharges from the Rapid Response Service and 
asked that this information be made available to Board members. Mr 
Goulston commented that he had recently visited the Rapid Response 
Service in east Kent which was managing pathway three. Team members 
had highlighted that demand on their service significantly exceeded the 
national expectation. Ms Poole confirmed the Trust had received additional 
funding to give greater oversight of patients on pathway three beds both in 
east and west Kent. Mr Goulston suggested that the integrated 
performance report could include this data and that the Quality Committee 
would look at it in detail. 
Action – Mr Flack/Ms Butterworth 
 
Ms Barber highlighted that the non-executive directors (NEDs) had been 
invited to attend an IMM as a one off to see the meeting in progress and 
asked that invitations were circulated to them. She also suggested that she 
and other NEDs would be interested to visit some of the winter plan 
schemes if that was possible. 
Actions - Ms Butterworth/Ms Poole 
 
The Board NOTED the Winter Plan. 

  

11/11/15 Integrated Performance Report 
 
Mr Flack presented the report to the Board for assurance. 
 

 In response to a question from Ms Barber that the report had highlighted 
how avoidable falls incidents had been related to a lack of staffing to 
facilitate one-to-one enhanced observations, Dr Spare explained that there 
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had been an increase in health care assistant vacancies and in sickness 
rates in some teams. However, work had been done to support the 
remaining healthcare assistants. Ms Robinson Collins added that 
additional healthcare assistants were being recruited from the vaccination 
programme. 
 
In response to a comment from Mr Turner regarding workforce turnover, 
Ms Robinson-Collins responded that further work needed to be done to 
understand and to respond to why colleagues were leaving the Trust or the 
NHS. 
 
Mr Conway remarked that less experienced staff were replacing more 
experienced staff in some services. Ms Barber agreed that this was a risk. 
She and Mr Goulston had observed this when they had visited some 
services and she asked what was being put in place to upskill those staff in 
a timely manner and at pace.  In response, Dr Spare highlighted that the 
formal “safer staffing” reports only related to nursing. At the community 
hospitals, there were other registrants as well such as senior therapists, 
specialist nurses and clinical managers. The Trust priority was to keep 
both patients and the site safe. Mr Turner added that the Strategic 
Workforce Committee and Quality Committee were monitoring this closely.  
It had been identified that in some services the turnover of staff was 
amongst those who had recently joined the Trust rather than senior clinical 
staff. This provided some stability for teams. Dr Spare highlighted that the 
nurses that were joining the Trust from overseas were highly trained. 
Although, they would be new to working in a UK community hospital, they 
brought many years’ nursing experience to their teams. 
 
In response to a question from Prof. Drobniewski regarding rotating 
experienced staff between community hospitals, Dr Spare confirmed that 
staff were rotated between sites based on the acuity of patients, staffing 
levels and the competency of the registered nurse. Some staff were happy 
to be peripatetic while others found it more difficult.  
 
Following a summary of the operational performance by Ms Poole, it was 
agreed that the Quality Committee would be updated on musculo-skeletal 
physiotherapy waiting times and the two-hour rapid response times at its 
meeting in December and January. 
Action – Ms Poole 
 
The Board RECEIVED the Integrated Performance Report. 

  

11/11/16 Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust Board appointment – 
Executive Directors 
 
Ms Davies presented the report to the Board for assurance. 
 
It was agreed that the report would be presented to the Council of 
Governors meeting on 26 January 2022 for noting. 
Action – Ms Davies 
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The Board RECEIVED the Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust 
Board appointment – Executive Directors. 
 

11/11/17 Any Other Business 
 

 
 

There was no other business to report. 
 

11/11/18 Questions from members of the public relating to the agenda 
  

There were no questions from the public. 
 
The meeting ended at 10.55am. 
 

 Date and Venue of the Next Meeting 
 

 Wednesday 9 February 2021; The Boardroom, The Oast, Hermitage 
Court, Hermitage Lane, Barming, Maidstone ME16 9NT. This meeting will 
be broadcast to the public on MS Teams 
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to any other 
committee? 

 
To share information and raise awareness of the Expert Patients Programme 
(EPP) and the story of one of the volunteer facilitators. 
 

 

Summary of key points 

  
The Expert Patients Programme is a free 6-week course for individuals who live with 
one or more long term health conditions. 

It can help individuals to regain their independence, manage everyday situations 
and boost their mental health and wellbeing.  The course aims to help people take 
more control of their health by learning new skills to manage their condition. 

The course covers: 

 dealing with pain and tiredness 

 coping with feelings of depression, stress and anxiety 

 relaxation techniques and exercise 

 healthy eating 

 communicating with family, friends and healthcare professionals 

 planning for the future. 

The course gives individuals new skills to help manage their condition and the 
emotional changes brought about by living with a long-term condition. It also 
provides a great opportunity to talk with other people who share similar experiences. 

The course is delivered by volunteer facilitators, who themselves live with one or 
more long term conditions and have been trained to deliver the Programme. 

Annie joined the Expert Patients Programme 15 years ago as a result of having long-
term conditions, and has benefitted immensely from using the resources to support 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 1.6 

Agenda Item Title:  Patient/Service Impact Story 

Presenting Officer: Dr Mercia Spare, Chief Nurse 

Action – this paper is for: 
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self-management of her conditions. Annie joined the EPP Team in 2009 as a 
volunteer facilitator, successfully completing the Chronic Disease Self-Management 
Programme training. In 2021 she successfully completed Master Training enabling 
her to train other volunteer facilitators.  

 
 

Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee or Board 

To note the patient story. 
 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
  
 
  

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

      
 

Name: 
 

  Dr Mercia Spare    Job title: Chief Nurse 

Telephone 
number: 
 

 Email Mercia.spare@nhs.net 
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to any other 
committee? 

This report updates the Board on the changes to the Board. 
 

 

Summary of key points 

We congratulate Paul Bentley on his appointment as designate Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of the Kent and Medway Integrated Care Board. Paul commenced 
his post on 17 January 2022 and we welcome Gordon Flack as our Acting Chief 
Executive and Gill Jacobs as Acting Director of Finance. The Trust is using the 
support of an executive search firm for the recruitment of the new chief executive 
of the Trust.  
 
The Council of Governors approved the attached report on 8 December 2021. We 
welcome the following Non-Executive Directors and Associate Non-Executive 
Director to the Board from 1 February 2022; 
 

 Karen Taylor – Non-Executive Director 

 Kim Lowe – Non-Executive Director 

 Razia Shariff - Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting member of 
the Board) 

 
The report contains summary biographies of the new appointees to the Board.  
 
Two Non-Executives ended their terms of office since the last board meeting; Prof. 
Francis Drobniewski and Sola Afuape and one other Non-Executive’s term of 
office is due to end on 31 March; Bridget Skelton. Pippa Barber replaces Sola 
Afuape as the Non-Executive Freedom to Speak Up Champion. 

 

Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee or Board 

The Board is asked to note the changes to the Board. The Chair will present a 
report to both the next part one meeting of the Board and Council of Governors 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 1.7 

Agenda Item Title:  Trust Chair’s Report 

Presenting Officer: John Goulston, Trust Chair 

Action – this paper is for: 
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meeting on the leadership and membership of the Board committees and on the 
non-executive leadership and champion roles. 
 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
  
 
  

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

      
 

Name: 
 

John Goulston Job title: Trust Chair 

Telephone 
number: 
 

01622 211900 Email j.goulston@nhs.net  
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APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND ASSOCIATE NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 

 

 

1. Executive Summary  
 
This report advises the Council of Governors of the process undertaken to 
appoint two new Non-Executive Directors (NED) and recommends the 
appointment of Karen Taylor and Kim Lowe. The report also recommends the 
appointment of Razia Shariff as an Associate Non-Executive Director. 
 

2. Introduction 
 
The appointment of Non-Executive Directors is one of the statutory duties of 
the Council of Governors. 
 
The Council of Governors gave their approval to the Nominations Committee 
to proceed with the recruitment of two NED and an associate NED position on 
3 November 2021. The Committee met several times during the recruitment 
process and agreed the job description, process and timetable for the 
recruitment. 
 
The Committee appointed external consultants Alumni Harvey Nash who have 
a track record in the appointment of Non-Executive Director appointments to 
support them with this recruitment.  In addition, the Nominations Committee 
agreed in accordance with the Trust Constitution that an appointment panel 
would undertake the selection process.  The panel was John Goulston (Chair), 
David Price (Governor), Miles Lemon (Governor), Jan Allen (Governor), 
Bridget Skelton (NED and Senior Independent Director). 
 

3. Detail of the report 
 
Shortlist 
 
66 applications were received from which 17 were longlisted shortlisted, 
whose CV’s demonstrated the experience and skills sought for the 
appointment of the Non-Executive Director. The Committee held a shortlisting 
meeting and short listed six candidates for the stakeholder event and the panel 
interview. 

 
Stakeholder event 
 
All shortlisted applicants attended a stakeholder event consisting of Governors 
and members of the Board. The view of stakeholders on the six candidates 
was provided to the interview panel. 
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Interviews 
 
Interviews took place on Tuesday 30th November 2021. 
 

4. Recommendation 
 

The Interview Panel came to an agreement by a unanimous decision that, 
Karen Taylor and Kim Lowe be recommended for appointment as Non-
Executive Director. In addition, that Razia Shariff be appointed as an associate 
Non-Executive Director 
 
Karen is the Research Director of the Centre for Health Solutions at Deloitte. 
She supports the Healthcare and Life Sciences practice by driving 
independent and objective population health research and analysis into key 
industry challenges.  Prior to joining Deloitte, she gained over 30 years of 
experience across various central Government departments as an employee 
of the National Audit Office. More recently, between 2011 and 2021, Karen 
was also a Non-Executive Board Director at Dartford and Gravesham NHS 
Trust, where she chaired the Board’s Quality and Safety Committee for six 
years. 
 
Kim is currently a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Kent and Medway 
NHS Social Care Partnership Trust. Alongside this, Kim is also a NED at 
Central Surrey Health (until 31 December 2021), Joint Chair at University of 
Kent Academies Trust, and Lay Member of the Council at the University of 
Kent.  She spent 12 years as an Elected Main Board Director for the John 
Lewis Partnership, and held leadership roles in the partnership including as 
Managing Director of John Lewis Bluewater. 
 
Razia has been CEO of Kent Refugee Action Network since July 2016, 
working to support asylum seekers and refugees at Folkestone and 
Canterbury. She was previously Head, Knowledge Exchange Team at the 
Economic and Social Research Council based at the University of 
Birmingham. Razia has extensive voluntary and community experience, 
including at Network Director for Wandsworth Community Empowerment 
Network and Policy Advisor for Bangladesh Women Chamber of Commerce. 

 
3. Summary and Recommendation 

 
The interview panel unanimously recommend to the Council of Governors the 
appointment of Karen Taylor and Kim Lowe as Non-Executive Directors for a 
period of 3 years in the first instance. In addition, that Razia Shariff be 
appointed as an associate Non-Executive Director for a period of 2 years. 
 

John Goulston 
Trust Chair 
January 2022 
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Report Summary 
This report highlights key business and service developments in Kent Community 
Health NHS Foundation Trust in recent weeks. 

 
 

Proposal and/or recommendation  

      
Not applicable. 
 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
(EA) for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
 
If not describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

      
 

Name: 
 

Gordon Flack   Job title: Acting Chief Executive  

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 1.8  

Agenda Item Title:  Chief Executive’s Report  

Presenting Officer: Gordon Flack, Acting Chief Executive Officer 
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Telephone 
number: 
 

01622 211902 Email Gordon.flack@nhs.net 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT 

February 2022 

 
Since the last time the board met in public (November 2021) Paul Bentley left the 
organisation on 14 January 2022 to take up the post of Chief Executive Designate for 
the Kent and Medway Integrated Care Board, I am sure all the Board would join me in 
wishing him good luck in his role.  Therefore, this is my first chief executive report to 
the Board as Acting Chief Executive and I am honoured to be appointed as the Acting 
Chief Executive until a substantive Chief Executive has been appointed. 
 
I wish to highlight to the board a number of issues which have arisen since the last 
time we met, grouped as in previous reports into the following categories patients and 
service users, our people, and partnerships 
 
Patients and service users 
 
1. Winter escalation beds 
 
Winter escalation beds at Westview and Westbrook were successfully opened on 
10th January 2022 to assist with Kent system seasonal winter and Covid demand. 
 
A robust procurement process was followed and a contract awarded for a managed 
service to staff the units for 15 beds per unit; with KCHFT providing senior clinical 
matron oversight to both units. 
 
KCHFT is also providing stroke expertise therapy input to the escalation beds at 
Westbrook; this has enabled cohorting of patients suitable for stroke rehabilitation in 
a community hospital facility in East Kent. The 30 escalation beds are fully utilised 
and will be funded until the end of March. 
 
 
1. Medway looked after children service 
 
Medway Looked After Children Service will be provided by Kent Community Health 
NHS Foundation Trust from 1 April.  
 
Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group has agreed the transfer from 
Medway Community Healthcare (MCH), to ensure a robust regional offer across the 
area.  
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The service is led by registered nurses and provides health assessments and 
specialist advice to support children placed in care in Medway.  
 
We understand just how vulnerable these children are. We are working closely 
together to make sure there is a smooth transition for all children, their families or 
carers. Nurses will TUPE and therefore children should continue to see the nurse 
they are familiar with, where appropriate.  
 
As MCH has done, KCHFT will provide: 
 

 initial health assessments (IHA) within 28 days of a child being placed in care 

 review health assessments (RHA) every six months for children under five 
and once a year for children over five, up to age of 19 years  

 medical provision and nursing 

 health action plans and health histories.  
 
 
 
2. HMP Swaleside CQC Inspection 
 
HMP Swaleside CQC inspection was undertaken in October 2021 - initial feedback 
appears positive for the dental service with improved wait times and clean facilities. 
The report will be published in due course and will be able update further once the 
report is available. 
 
 
Our People   
 
1. Mandatory vaccination pause for health and social care 
 
The Government announced the decision to pause the mandate on vaccinations for 
health and social care staff on 31 January. 
  
All NHS trusts received a letter from NHS England and NHS Improvement 
advising the law is now under review and the policy is being reconsidered. While the 
consultation is going on, they have asked us to pause any formal employment 
discussions. 
  
The Government’s decision is subject to the usual parliamentary process and will 
need consultation and a new vote to be passed into legislation.  
 
At the 1st February the Trust had evidence of 95% of staff were vaccinated or 
exempt. 
 
Alongside professional bodies, we have been asked to continue to urge anyone who 
is still unvaccinated to book their vaccine.  
 
 
2. Staffing 
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We continue to see COVID sickness amongst staff which is creating pressure in 
some teams. This is being mitigated by moving staff between teams, temporarily 
reducing bed numbers and the addition of our qualified overseas recruits who are 
now out working in the community hospital teams. Staffing is monitored twice a week 
to ensure we are agile in ensuring there is no impact on the quality of care. 
 
Despite the pressures the care and compassion of our staff shines through and our 
quality and feedback from patients remains exemplary.   
 
 
3. Staff flu vaccination uptake 
 
Staff flu vaccine uptake is currently at 60%. The programme will run until the 28th 
February however, it is unlikely that we will get a significant increase. The driver for 
lower uptake appears to be the continued focus on COVID vaccination for all 
healthcare workers and the acceleration of this for the community, limiting the 
number of staff who were available to support the flu programme.  
 
4. Further International recruitment 
 
In quarter 3 2021/22, the Trust submitted a bid to NHSE/I for some funding to 
support the recruitment of 100 international band 5 registered nurses. Shortly before 
Christmas this was agreed and as such we have been awarded £300k in funds to 
support the recruitment project. The Trust has established an international 
recruitment steering group to oversee this exciting on-going recruitment project. 
 
 
5. Chief Executive recruitment update 
 
The advertisement for the Chief Executive vacancy closes on 31st January 2022 and 
early indications from Odgers Berntdsen are positive in relation to the candidate 
pool.  Longlisting and shortlisting is scheduled to take place in early February with 
the Stakeholder event taking place on Friday 11th March 2022. Final panel interviews 
are scheduled to take place Wednesday 16th March 2022.  Colleagues from the Kent 
& Medway system, Board members, Governors and members of the Integrated 
Management Meeting (IMM) will all participate in the Stakeholder event.  The BAME 
network lead is also participating in the final panel interview. 
 
 
Partnerships 
 
1. 2022/23 planning 
 
Planning guidance has been issued for 22/23 with a draft plan to be submitted on 
17th March and a final plan by 28th April. These plans will be for the system as well 
as the trust and close working at system level will be essential. 
 
Revenue and capital allocations for 22/23 (and extending to 24/25 for capital 
allocations) have been issued to systems and the Kent and Medway ICS is now 
working with providers to agree the distribution of the allocation.  The provider 
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revenue allocations will be based on funding for the second half of 21/22 (multiplied 
by 2) adjusted for non-recurrent items, plus growth of c. 3.2% less an efficiency of c. 
2.5%. 
 
The provider baseline capital allocations in each year will be at a similar level to 
21/22. In addition, there are specific allocations for primary care, elective recovery 
targeted investment fund (TIF), endoscopy, community diagnostic centres, levelling 
up digital maturity, front line digitisation and critical cybersecurity infrastructure risks 
yet to be allocated. The Trust will work with the system partners in agreeing 
collective plans. 
 
 
Gordon Flack 
Acting Chief Executive 
February 2022 
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Executive team? 
 
The function of the Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is to inform and elicit 
discussion about the significant risks which threaten the achievement of the Trust’s 
strategic objectives. To provide assurance that these risks are being effectively 
managed, the BAF details the controls in place to mitigate each risk, any gap in 
control, assurance of the controls’ effectiveness, the actions planned and being 
executed together with the date by when the actions are due to be completed. 

 

Summary of key points 

 
Since the BAF was last presented all risks and actions have been reviewed and 
updated. 
 

 

Proposal and/or recommendation 

      
It is proposed the Board note the changes made to the BAF and any further 
recommendations offered. 
 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
(EA) for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
 
If not describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 2.1 

Agenda Item Title: Board Assurance Framework 

Presenting Officer: Natalie Davies, Director of Corporate Services 

Action – this paper is for: 
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Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

      
 

Name: 
 

Ben Norton Job title: Head of Risk & incident 
Management 

Telephone 
number: 
 

01233667700 Email Ben.norton@nhs.net 

 
 

Page 28 of 189



G A

ID

Opened
Board 
Level 
Risk 

C
L

Rating

Co
nt

ro
ls

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

To
p 

Fi
ve

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
s

C
L

Rating

Confide
nce 

Assess C
L

Rating

Target 
Date 
(end)

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

Ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

ed
 d

at
a 

to
 in

fo
rm

 ta
rg

et
ed

 c
on

ve
rs

at
io

ns
 to

 d
riv

e 
up

ta
ke

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
   

  F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

22
A

O
ng

oi
ng

 1
21

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 w
ith

 v
ac

ci
ne

 h
es

ita
nt

 s
ta

ff,
 v

id
eo

s 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 a
nd

 re
as

su
re

 s
ta

ff,
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l, 
w

eb
in

ar
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Vi

ct
or

ia
 R

ob
in

so
n-

C
ol

lin
s

   
  F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
22

A

Fo
rm

al
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
   

  M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

As
se

ss
m

en
t o

f r
is

k 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pa
ct

 fo
r o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
de

liv
er

y 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
   

  F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

22
A

As
se

ss
m

en
t o

n 
lik

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

of
 c

ar
e

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
   

  F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

22
A

20
Ac

tio
ns

 to
 re

du
ce

 ri
sk

O
w

ne
r

Ta
rg

et
 C

om
pl

et
io

n 
(e

nd
)

St
at

us
9

Lo
ca

l o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 o

f t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
at

rix
 a

nd
 e

sc
al

at
io

n 
vi

a 
PS

C
R

G
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d

M
er

ci
a 

Sp
ar

e
  M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

C
on

tin
ue

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ta
ff 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s

  M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

La
un

ch
 o

f s
ev

en
 c

am
pa

ig
ns

 d
ur

in
g 

21
/2

2 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
. 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 K
C

C
 a

nd
 C

C
G

 to
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r p

at
hw

ay
 1

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

cr
os

s 
K&

M
Pa

ul
in

e 
Bu

tte
rw

or
th

 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 K

C
C

 a
nd

 C
C

G
 to

 a
gr

ee
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r h
an

do
ve

r t
o 

KC
C

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Pa

ul
in

e 
Bu

tte
rw

or
th

 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 K

C
C

 a
nd

 C
C

G
 to

 a
gr

ee
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

in
 e

as
t K

en
t a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
 

M
ar

ch
  2

02
2

A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

Sa
fe

r s
ta

ffi
ng

 re
vi

ew
s 

fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
 a

nd
 h

ot
 s

po
t a

re
as

 
w

ee
kl

y
M

er
ci

a 
Sp

ar
e

  M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

D
ev

el
op

 s
af

er
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 m

od
el

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r c
om

m
un

ity
 N

ur
si

ng
 

M
er

ci
a 

Sp
ar

e
  M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

R
ep

or
t s

af
er

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 to
 e

xe
cs

 m
on

th
ly

 
M

er
ci

a 
Sp

ar
e

  M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

O
n-

go
in

g 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t o
f s

ta
ff

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

Medium

3
3

9

March 2022

16
4

4

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ile
st

on
es

Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

(S
im

pl
e 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Ri

sk
)

5

Pr
ev

en
t i

ll 
he

al
th

Victoria Robinson-Collins

5
4

R
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 a

nd
 o

n-
go

in
g 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 C

O
VI

D
 w

ill
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
st

af
f s

tre
ss

 a
nd

 m
or

al
e 

to
 a

n 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

is
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

B
oa

rd

July 2020

R
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 m

an
da

te
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t C
ov

id
-1

9 
va

cc
in

at
io

n 
as

 a
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 d

ep
lo

ym
en

t f
or

 H
ea

lth
ca

re
 

W
or

ke
rs

, a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t p

au
se

, w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

ga
ps

, s
ho

rta
ge

s,
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

st
af

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t/ 

m
or

al
e 

an
d 

le
ga

l c
la

im
s

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

St
ra

te
gi

c 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 C
om

m
itt

ee

N
at

io
na

l a
nd

 R
eg

io
na

l T
as

k 
an

d 
Fi

ni
sh

 g
ro

up
s;

 In
te

rn
al

 T
as

k 
an

d 
Fi

ni
sh

 G
ro

up
; E

ffo
rts

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
va

cc
in

e 
he

si
ta

nc
y 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
up

ta
ke

;  
Ef

fo
rts

 to
 s

ou
rc

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
du

tie
s 

w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

.  
U

se
 o

f l
oc

al
ly

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
ed

 s
ys

te
m

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a 
to

 in
fo

rm
 a

re
as

 o
f r

is
k 

to
 ta

rg
et

 s
up

po
rt 

co
nv

er
sa

tio
ns

.  
Su

pp
or

t f
or

 s
ta

ff 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

va
cc

in
at

io
n 

in
 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
se

tti
ng

 a
t v

ac
ci

na
tio

n 
ce

nt
re

s

In
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l R
ep

or
tin

g 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

si
t-r

ep
or

tin
g 

da
ily

 u
si

ng
 in

te
rn

al
 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

ed
 d

at
a

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l K

PI
s

4
4

16

Victoria Robinson-Collins

Jan-22

122

C
ur

re
nt

 R
at

in
g 

= 
R

is
k 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tro

ls
 in

 p
la

ce
. T

hi
s 

is
 re

vi
ew

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
de

cr
ea

se
 a

s 
ac

tio
ns

  t
ak

e 
ef

fe
ct

.

Ta
rg

et
 D

at
e 

= 
M

on
th

 e
nd

 b
y 

wh
ic

h 
al

l a
ct

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

C
ov

id
 1

9 
R

es
po

ns
e 

Pl
an

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l R

es
po

ns
e 

SR
O

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
In

ci
de

nt
 T

ea
m

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 L
H

R
P

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

Ba
ttl

e 
rh

yt
hm

 re
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 p
la

n

In
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l R
ep

or
tin

g 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

si
t-r

ep
or

tin
g 

da
ily

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 R

es
po

ns
e 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l K

PI
s

LR
F 

ar
ea

 ra
tin

gs
 n

at
io

nw
id

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l  

Tr
us

t 1
21

 te
m

pl
at

e 

115

D
ai

ly
 S

it 
re

p
IM

M
 re

po
rt 

to
 e

xe
cu

tiv
e

G
ro

w
in

g 
va

ca
nc

y 
ra

te
O

ve
rs

ig
ht

 o
f r

ec
ru

itm
en

t o
f w

or
kf

or
ce

 
m

et
ric

s 
by

 q
ua

lit
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 &

 b
oa

rd
   

 
M

on
th

ly
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

po
rt

Tw
ic

e 
w

ee
kl

y 
sa

fe
r s

ta
ffi

ng
 re

vi
ew

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

February 2021

Pauline Butterworth

Sy
st

em
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
 p

la
ns

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
w

in
te

r, 
su

rg
e 

an
d 

re
se

t 
co

ul
d 

be
 in

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
em

an
d 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 b
ei

ng
 o

ve
rw

he
lm

ed
 a

nd
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

no
t 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

ey
 re

qu
ire

.

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee

3
15

R
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
on

-g
oi

ng
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

an
d 

st
af

f s
ho

rta
ge

s 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 g
ro

w
in

g 
va

ca
nc

ie
s,

 h
ig

h 
ac

ui
ty

 o
f p

at
ie

nt
s 

an
d 

st
af

f 
ab

se
nc

e 
m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

de
m

an
ds

 o
n 

st
af

f a
nd

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

sa
fe

r s
ta

ffi
ng

 le
ve

ls
, a

 p
oo

re
r s

er
vi

ce
 to

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
an

d/
or

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 s

hu
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
su

lta
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
sy

st
em

.

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

St
ra

te
gi

c 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 C
om

m
itt

ee

Sy
st

em
 re

sp
on

se
 th

ro
ug

h 
LH

R
P/

N
H

SE
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
LR

F 
ar

ea
 ra

tin
gs

   
   

   
   

U
pd

at
ed

 1
st

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

22

D
ef

in
iti

on
s:

In
iti

al
 R

at
in

g 
= 

Th
e 

ris
k 

ra
tin

g 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
 

 
 

 

A
ct

io
n 

st
at

us
 k

ey
:

Ac
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

O
n 

tra
ck

 b
ut

 n
ot

 y
et

 d
el

iv
er

ed

4
12

Sy
st

em
 le

d 
w

in
te

r, 
su

rg
e 

an
d 

re
co

ve
ry

 p
la

ns
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

sy
st

em
.  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
ee

kl
y 

C
O

O
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 a

 jo
in

ed
-u

p 
w

ay
.

K&
M

 s
ys

te
m

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
w

in
te

r p
la

n 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ut

ili
si

ng
 

pr
ov

id
er

 p
la

ns
.

W
in

te
r p

la
ns

 to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 A

E 
de

liv
er

y 
bo

ar
ds

 a
t I

C
P 

le
ve

l.
D

ai
ly

 S
itr

ep
 re

po
rti

ng
 - 

Lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
 N

at
io

na
lly

.  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l r
is

k 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 lo

gs
.  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

of
 L

H
R

P 
   

  

Medium

5
3

15

108

March 2020

110

4

5
Ac

tiv
e 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t c

am
pa

ig
n

W
ee

kl
y 

st
af

f r
ot

a 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 e
sc

al
at

io
n 

pa
th

s
Pa

tie
nt

 S
af

et
y 

& 
C

lin
ic

al
 R

is
k 

G
ro

up
IM

M
 m

ee
tin

g 
- r

ed
ep

lo
ye

d 
st

af
f

Ba
nk

 s
ys

te
m

 in
 p

la
ce

Mercia Spare

Low

March 2022

3
6

Medium

March 2022

3
3

3
2

5
15

March 2022

3
15

3
3

12
H

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

B
oa

rd
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

Page 29 of 189



ID

Opened
Board 
Level 
Risk 

C
L

Rating

Co
nt

ro
ls

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

To
p 

Fi
ve

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
s

C
L

Rating

Confide
nce 

Assess C
L

Rating

Target 
Date 
(end)

Pl
an

ne
d 

Ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ile
st

on
es

Ri
sk

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

(S
im

pl
e 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Ri

sk
)

 
 

C
ur

re
nt

 R
at

in
g 

= 
R

is
k 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tro

ls
 in

 p
la

ce
. T

hi
s 

is
 re

vi
ew

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
de

cr
ea

se
 a

s 
ac

tio
ns

  t
ak

e 
ef

fe
ct

.

Ta
rg

et
 D

at
e 

= 
M

on
th

 e
nd

 b
y 

wh
ic

h 
al

l a
ct

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

M
on

ito
r W

in
te

r P
re

ss
ur

e 
Pl

an
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
Pa

ul
in

e 
Bu

tte
rw

or
th

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

1
G

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
& 

fu
ll 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 S

ta
ff 

flu
 V

ac
ci

na
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
- 

10
0%

 o
ffe

r/8
5%

 u
pt

ak
e

M
er

ci
a 

Sp
ar

e
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

02
2

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
& 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 C

ov
id

 b
oo

st
er

s
Pa

ul
in

e 
Bu

tte
rw

or
th

M
ar

ch
 2

02
2 

A

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

op
tio

n 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 IM
M

 c
al

ls
 to

 
ag

re
e 

da
ily

 a
ct

io
ns

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

Ac
tiv

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 w

ai
t t

im
es

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 in

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 

to
 s

ys
te

m
 p

re
ss

ur
es

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
Fe

b-
22

A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

R
ev

is
io

n 
& 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
ch

oo
ls

 w
id

er
 im

m
un

is
at

io
n 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 u
til

is
in

g 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 Im

m
s 

te
am

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
cl

in
ic

al
 p

ro
to

co
ls

, 
st

af
fin

g 
m

od
el

, c
on

se
nt

 p
ro

ce
ss

, l
og

is
tic

s

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

22
G

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 fi
ni

sh
 g

ro
up

 to
 li

ai
se

 w
ith

 C
C

G
, s

ch
oo

ls
, s

ta
ff 

an
d 

sy
st

em
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 m

od
el

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r a
ll 

va
cc

in
at

io
ns

. I
m

pl
em

en
t 

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

So
ur

ce
 lo

ca
l e

st
at

e 
fo

r p
op

 u
p/

ad
ho

c 
cl

in
ic

s 
in

 lo
w

 u
pt

ak
e 

ar
ea

s
Pa

ul
in

e 
Bu

tte
rw

or
th

M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

KC
H

FT
 w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
 a

de
qu

at
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 to

 
fu

lfi
l o

ur
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 le
ad

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 fo

r C
O

VI
D

 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 R

ob
in

so
n-

C
ol

lin
s

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
22

A

KC
H

FT
 w

ill
 p

ut
 a

 ro
bu

st
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
fu

lfi
l 

ro
le

 a
s 

le
ad

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 to

 s
ys

te
m

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
 

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

22
A

Ac
tiv

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 C
O

VI
D

 b
an

k 
w

or
ke

rs
 to

 re
 a

ct
iv

at
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 w
or

ke
rs

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
Bo

os
te

r a
cc

el
er

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
Vi

ct
or

ia
 R

ob
in

so
n-

C
ol

lin
s

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

2
A

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 le

ad
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
fu

nc
tio

n
Vi

ct
or

ia
 R

ob
in

so
n-

C
ol

lin
s

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

2
A

Ac
tiv

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 K

C
H

FT
 b

an
k 

fil
l r

at
es

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
at

 ri
sk

 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 B

an
k 

w
or

ke
rs

 c
ho

os
e 

to
 w

or
k 

fo
r V

ac
ci

ne
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

st
ea

d 
of

 K
C

H
FT

 c
or

e 
se

rv
ic

e.

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

02
2

A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

En
su

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t a
nd

 c
o 

or
di

na
te

d 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 K
en

t a
nd

 M
ed

w
ay

 
IC

S 
en

d 
st

at
e 

pr
op

os
al

s
G

er
ar

d 
Sa

m
m

on
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f l

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
in

 th
e 

W
es

t K
en

t p
la

ce
 b

as
ed

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 (f
or

m
er

ly
 W

es
t K

en
t I

C
P)

 a
nd

 it
s 

fu
tu

re
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

fo
rm

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

IC
S 

en
d 

st
at

e

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

22

G

SR
O

 ro
le

 fo
r E

as
t K

en
t p

la
ce

 b
as

ed
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 E
as

t K
en

t 
IC

P)
 a

nd
 it

s 
fu

tu
re

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 fo
rm

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

IC
S 

en
d 

st
at

e.
 

Pa
ul

 B
en

tle
y

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
22

G

C
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

IC
S 

sy
st

em
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
th

at
 

in
cl

ud
es

 c
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 C
ar

e 
Bo

ar
d 

(IC
B)

 a
nd

 it
s 

ne
w

 c
on

st
itu

tio
n 

an
d 

BA
F

Pa
ul

 B
en

tle
y

M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 K

C
C

 a
nd

 K
M

PT
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 le
ad

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

LD
&A

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

Pa
ul

 B
en

tle
y

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

1
G

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 g

ro
up

, m
ee

tin
gs

, T
oR

 a
nd

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
fo

r d
is

ch
ar

ge
 p

at
hw

ay
s

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1

G

W
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

on
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 p
at

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
ag

re
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

Pa
ul

in
e 

Bu
tte

rw
or

th
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

R
es

et
 th

e 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
KC

C
/K

C
H

FT
G

or
do

n 
Fl

ac
k

M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

Ac
tio

ns
 to

 re
du

ce
 ri

sk
O

w
ne

r
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(e
nd

)
St

at
us

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 in
te

rim
 a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

R
em

C
om

Jo
hn

 G
ou

ls
to

n
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
G

Sw
ift

, d
et

ai
le

d 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

In
du

ct
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r n
ew

 N
ED

s
Jo

hn
 G

ou
ls

to
n

M
ar

ch
 2

02
2

A

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 b

oa
rd

 a
nd

 e
xe

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
ur

 O
D

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 u
ph

ol
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 

te
am

 w
or

ki
ng

.

Vi
ct

or
ia

 R
ob

in
so

n-
C

ol
lin

s
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2
A

121

Dec 2021

John Goulston

4
4

3

Gerard Sammon

12
H

Medium

4
2

6

March 2022

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
at

 a
 ti

m
e 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l p

re
ss

ur
e 

m
ay

 im
pa

ct
 th

e 
bo

ar
ds

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 o

f 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 re

sp
on

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
in

 
a 

fo
cu

se
d 

w
ay

 to
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

op
er

at
io

n.

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

B
oa

rd

4
3

12
H

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 In
te

rim
 C

EO
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

fo
r n

ew
 C

EO
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 in
te

rim
 a

rra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

R
em

C
om

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l r

es
po

ns
e 

e.
g.

IP
R

 re
po

rti
ng

4
3

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
o 

ac
ce

le
ra

te
 th

e 
C

O
VI

D
 V

ac
ci

na
tio

n 
bo

os
te

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
em

er
ge

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
O

m
ic

ro
n 

C
ov

id
19

 v
ar

ia
nt

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 v
ac

ci
na

tio
n 

w
or

ke
rs

 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
so

ur
ce

d 
to

 m
ee

t i
nc

re
as

ed
 b

oo
st

er
 

va
cc

in
at

io
n 

de
m

an
d.

 T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

ne
ga

tiv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

te
m

po
ra

ry
  s

ta
ffi

ng
 fi

ll 
ra

te
s;

 a
nd

 m
ay

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 

de
liv

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
ei

th
er

 in
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

or
 q

ua
lit

y.
 

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

B
oa

rd

5
4

20
Se

ni
or

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 K

&M
; r

eg
io

na
l a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l  

C
O

VI
D

 V
ac

ci
na

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

  c
al

ls
.

D
ai

ly
 s

itr
ep

.
Ad

di
tio

na
l C

ov
id

 B
an

k 
w

or
ke

rs
 s

ou
rc

ed
 to

 m
ee

t b
oo

st
er

 
de

m
an

d.
 P

ro
ac

tiv
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 K

C
H

FT
 s

ta
ff 

ba
nk

 to
 a

ttr
ac

t w
or

ke
rs

 to
 

co
re

 K
C

H
FT

 s
er

vi
ce

s
KC

H
FT

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

 a
ct

 a
s 

th
e 

le
ad

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 fo

r 
th

e 
K&

M
 s

ys
te

m
 v

ac
ci

na
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e
KC

H
FT

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 v
ac

ci
na

tio
n 

si
te

s
KC

H
FT

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 B

an
k 

w
or

ke
rs

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
LV

S 
Si

te
s 

in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 b

oo
st

er
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.

In
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l R
ep

or
tin

g 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

si
tu

at
io

n-
re

po
rti

ng
 d

ai
ly

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
ov

er
si

gh
t v

ia
 E

xe
c 

SR
O

   
   

   
   

 
Ac

tiv
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
K&

M
 s

ys
te

m
 O

C
C

Ac
tiv

e 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 K
&M

 s
ys

te
m

 
C

ov
id

 V
ac

c 
gr

ou
p

KC
H

FT
 a

s 
Le

ad
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 s

ys
te

m
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

& 
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
as

 le
ad

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 to

 s
ha

pe
 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 c

ov
id

 v
ac

ci
na

tio
n 

m
od

el
.

5

Pauline Butterworth

4
R

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 m

ay
  s

uf
fe

r s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 a

s 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f w

in
te

r p
re

ss
ur

es
 in

 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 C

O
VI

D
.

3
Im

pl
em

en
t s

ta
ff 

& 
pa

tie
nt

 F
lu

 v
ac

ci
na

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

An
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
re

gi
na

l E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
es

su
re

s 
Pa

ne
l h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
le

ve
ls

 o
f s

ys
te

m
 ri

sk
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

d 
re

sp
on

se
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f C
O

VI
D

/n
on

 C
O

VI
D

 d
em

an
d 

pr
of

ile
s

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

da
ily

 s
it 

re
p 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
re

sp
on

se

118117

November 2021

12
H

March 22

3
6

St
af

f f
lu

 v
ac

ci
na

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

KC
H

FT
 s

ta
ff.

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

W
in

te
r P

re
ss

ur
e 

Pl
an

s.
   

   
   

   
   

  
Ac

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
ga

p 
in

 c
on

tro
ls

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

is
 

ris
k.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 o

f o
th

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
pr

ov
id

er
's 

m
et

ric
s 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 a
t s

ys
te

m
 

le
ve

l.

12
H

12
H

Low

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

•B
oa

rd
 T

O
R

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p
TO

R
s 

fo
r: 

IC
P 

fo
ru

m
s,

 L
oc

al
 C

ar
e 

Bo
ar

ds
; F

ra
ilt

y 
G

ro
up

; C
hi

ef
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

es
 F

or
um

KC
H

FT
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
as

 S
IR

O
 fo

r E
as

t H
C

B
KC

H
FT

 C
ha

ir 
is

 C
ha

ir 
fo

r W
es

t K
en

t I
C

P
Sy

st
em

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

tru
ct

ur
e

In
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

m
at

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f I
C

S
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
N

ED
 p

re
se

nc
e 

an
d 

ro
le

 in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 to
 b

e 
pu

rs
ue

d 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
.

Ac
tiv

e 
in

 IC
Ps

3
9

March 2022

3
15

Medium

3

12
H

Medium

4

November 2020

Pauline Butterworth

Lo
w

 u
pt

ak
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ov
id

-1
9 

va
cc

in
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 1

2-
15

 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

w
ith

 w
ith

in
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

up
ta

ke
 o

f 2
nd

 d
os

e 
de

liv
er

y 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 y
ea

r m
ea

ns
 fu

rth
er

 
ca

tc
h-

up
 c

lin
ic

s 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

 v
is

its
 w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 w
ith

 li
m

ite
d 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
m

ay
 im

pa
ct

 th
e 

st
ab

ili
ty

 in
 th

e 
te

am
.

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

B
oa

rd

4
3

12
H

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

bo
ar

d 
an

d 
w

or
k 

st
re

am
s 

SR
O

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 –

 C
hi

ef
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

of
 lo

ca
l, 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l f
or

a
U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f C

ov
id

 d
em

an
d 

pr
of

ile
s,

 m
od

el
 o

f d
em

an
d 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
up

ta
ke

 a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l g
ui

da
nc

e
W

ee
kl

y 
si

t r
ep

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
sy

st
em

 v
ac

ci
ne

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pl

an
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ta

sk
 a

nd
 fi

ni
sh

 g
ro

up
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 o
ve

rs
ee

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

D
ai

ly
 S

it 
re

p
N

at
io

na
l o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

rin
g

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 C

ov
id

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
  

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 fi
ni

sh
 g

ro
up

   
   

   
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

ov
er

si
gh

t v
ia

 S
R

O
   

 

4
33

12
H

2
6

March 2022

32

Medium

March 2022

9
3

3
4

12
H

Medium

2
3

6

March 2022

4

116

May 2021

Gordon Flack

Af
te

r a
 d

ec
ad

e 
of

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f a

ro
un

d 
£7

00
m

 K
C

C
 h

av
e 

a 
£1

.2
bn

 c
ur

re
nt

 b
ud

ge
t o

f w
hi

ch
 8

0%
 is

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

an
d 

a 
sh

or
tfa

ll 
of

 £
40

-£
60

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 2
2-

23
.  

Th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 w

ith
in

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
pu

t a
t r

is
k 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 K

C
H

FT
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 p
at

hw
ay

s,
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 

se
rv

ic
es

 L
D

 a
nd

 a
ut

is
m

 s
er

vi
ce

s.

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

Fi
na

nc
e 

B
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee

4
3

12
H

A 
si

ng
le

 IC
S 

se
ni

or
 le

ve
l  

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 B
od

y 
of

 e
qu

al
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 C
C

G
, u

se
r a

nd
 c

ar
er

 v
oi

ce
 

an
d 

sy
st

em
 p

ro
vi

de
r b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
.

Fo
rm

al
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
un

til
 2

02
5 

be
tw

ee
n 

KC
H

FT
& 

KC
C

.
LD

 &
 a

ut
is

m
 s

ys
te

m
 a

lli
an

ce
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t.
KC

H
FT

 C
O

O
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 s
ys

te
m

 le
ve

l d
is

ch
ar

ge
 p

la
nn

in
g 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e

Fu
nd

in
g 

ag
re

ed
 fo

r H
2

M
on

ito
rin

g 
de

liv
er

y 
ag

ai
ns

t P
H

 a
nd

 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

IP
R

 ta
rg

et
s

C
on

tra
ct

 a
gr

ee
d 

LD
&A

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
, d

el
eg

at
ed

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 

an
d 

m
ic

ro
 c

om
m

is
si

on
 a

ll 
LD

A 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
su

pp
or

t a
gr

ee
d.

KC
C

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

tru
ct

ur
e.

119

December 2021

Victoria Robinson-Collins

D
el

iv
er

 H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

ar
e 

at
 H

om
e 

an
d 

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

103

Lo
ca

l C
ar

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r b
ot

h 
ea

st
 a

nd
 w

es
t K

en
t -

 H
os

pi
ta

l a
t H

om
e 

an
d 

R
ap

id
 T

ra
ns

fe
r o

f C
ar

e 
sc

he
m

e.
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 
Fu

nd
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

et
tle

m
en

t
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

c 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
bo

ar
d

R
eg

ul
ar

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t u
pd

at
e 

to
 

th
e 

bo
ar

d
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

ST
P 

bo
ar

d.
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f s
tra

te
gy

 re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 fo

ru
m

3

January 2019

W
ith

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f a

 h
ei

gh
te

ne
d 

 le
ve

l o
f a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 

se
as

on
al

 p
re

ss
ur

es
, t

he
 IC

S 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t 

co
ul

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
la

rit
y 

an
d 

fo
cu

s.
 

Bo
ar

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 L
ea

d 
on

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
:

B
oa

rd

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2

Page 30 of 189



 

 

What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to 
any other committee? 
 
COVID-19 Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is presented to provide assurance 
to the Committee on compliance with Health and Social Care Act (2008) Code of 
Practice on the prevention and control of infections and other related guidance.  
 
Amendments to the previous submission have been highlighted in purple font. 
 

 

Summary of key points 

The Trust remains compliant with the regulatory requirements of the Health and 
Social Care Act (2008) Code of Practice on the prevention and control of infections 
and other related guidance.  
 
There continues to be a daily focus on the key actions that will provide the biggest 
impact on management and prevention of nosocomial infection including 

 Hand washing/decontamination 

 Patient isolation/cohorting 

 Personal protective equipment and social distancing 

 Environmental and equipment decontamination 

 Ventilation 

 Vaccination 
 
Key changes in guidance, actions and mitigation since the last review is 
highlighted in purple.  
 
A refreshed IP&C BAF was published on 24 December 2021 and main changes 
are highlighted in Yellow.  

 

Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee or Board 

To note the report. 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 2.2 

Agenda Item Title: 
Infection Prevention and Control Board Assurance 
Framework 

Presenting Officer:  Dr Mercia Spare, Chief Nurse 

Action – this paper is for: 
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If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
  

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

      

 

Name: 
 

Dr Mercia Spare    Job title: Chief Nurse 

Telephone 
number: 
 

07384878317 Email mercia.spare@nhs.net 
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Infection prevention and control board 
assurance framework 
24 December 2021 Version 1.8 

 

 

 

Foreword 

NHS staff should be proud of the care being provided to patients and the way in which 

services have been rapidly adapted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
Effective infection prevention and control is fundamental to our efforts. We have further 

developed this board assurance framework to support all healthcare providers to effectively 

self-assess their compliance with UKHSA Infection prevention and control for seasonal 

respiratory infections in health and care settings (including SARS-CoV-2) for winter 2021 to 

2022and other related infection prevention and control guidance to identify risks associated 

with COVID-19 and other seasonal respiratory viral infections The general principles can be 

applied across all settings;  acute and specialist  hospitals,  community hospitals,  mental 

health and learning disability, and locally adapted. 

 
The framework can be used to assure directors of infection prevention and control, medical 

directors, and directors of nursing by assessing the measures taken in line with current 

guidance. It can be used to provide evidence and as an improvement tool to optimise actions 

and interventions. The framework can also be used to assure trust boards. 

 
Using this framework is not compulsory, however its use as a source of internal assurance 

will help support organisations to maintain quality standards. 
 

Ruth May 

Chief Nursing Officer for England 

Classification: Official 

Publication approval reference: C1501 

 

Updates from version 1.6 are highlighted in yellow. 
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2 | Infection prevention and control board assurance framework  

1. Introduction 

As our understanding of COVID-19 has developed, guidance on the required infection 

prevention and control measures has been published, this has now been updated  and 

refined to reflect the learning from the SARS-CoV-2 and to acknowledge the threat from 

other respiratory viruses. This continuous process will ensure organisations can respond in 

an evidence-based way to maintain the safety of patients, services users, and staff. 

 

This framework has been developed and updated following updates in the guidance to help 

providers assess themselves as a source of internal assurance that quality standards are 

being maintained. It will also help them identify any areas of risk and show the corrective 

actions taken in response. The tool therefore can also provide assurance to trust boards that 

organisational compliance has been systematically reviewed. 

 

The framework is intended to be useful for directors of infection prevention and control, 

medical directors, and directors of nursing rather than imposing an additional burden.  This is a 

decision that will be taken locally although organisations must ensure they have alternative 

appropriate internal assurance mechanisms in place. 

2. Legislative framework 

The legislative framework is in place to protect service users and staff from avoidable harm 

in a healthcare setting. We have structured the framework around the existing 10 criteria set 

out in the Code of Practice on the prevention and control of infection which links directly to 

Regulation 12 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated  Activities) Regulations 

2014. 

 

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 places wide-ranging duties on employers, who are 

required to protect the 'health, safety and welfare' at work of all their employees, as well as 

others on their premises, including temporary staff, casual workers, the self -employed, 

clients, visitors and the general public. The legislation also imposes a duty on staff to take 

reasonable care of health and safety at work for themselves and for others, and to co- 

operate with employers to ensure compliance with health and safety requirements. 

 
Robust risk assessment processes are central to protecting the health, safety and welfare of 

patients, service users and staff under both pieces of legislation. Where it is not possible to 

eliminate risk, organisations must assess and mitigate risk and provide safe systems of work. 

Local risk assessments should be based on the measures as prioritised in the hierarchy of 

controls. In the context of SARs-CoV-2 and other seasonal respiratory viruses, there is an 

inherent level of risk for NHS staff who are treating and caring for patients and service users 

and for the patients and service users themselves in a healthcare setting. All organisations 

must therefore ensure that risks are identified, managed, and mitigated effectively. 
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committee? 
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CONFIRMED Minutes of the Charitable Funds Committee meeting 

held on Thursday 14 July 2021 
 

Virtual meeting on MS Teams 
 

 
Present: Prof. Francis Drobniewski, Non-Executive Director (Chair)  
 Sola Afuape, Non-Executive Director 
 Pippa Barber, Non-Executive Director  
 Carol Coleman, Public Governor, Dover and Deal 
 Gordon Flack, Director of Finance / Deputy Chief Executive 

(representing Dr Mercia Spare) 
In Attendance: Gina Baines, Committee Secretary (minute-taker) 
 Jo Bing, Assistant Financial Accountant (agenda items 2.1 and 

2.4) 
 Fleur Cromarty, Head of Estates Capital Projects (agenda item 

1.4) 
 Jo Treharne, Head of Campaigns (agenda items 2.2) 
 Carl Williams, Head of Financial Accounting (agenda item 2.5) 
 Dan Wright, Sustainability Lead (agenda item 2.3) 
Observer: Kwasi Owusu, Graduate Trainee, Finance 
  

 
012/21 Welcome and apologies for absence 

 
 Francis Drobniewski welcomed everyone present to the meeting of 

the Charitable Funds Committee.  
 
Apologies were received from Victoria Cover, Head of Clinical 
Services Urgent Care and Hospitals (West Kent); Dawn Levett, 
Strategic Delivery Manager Urgent Care (East Kent); Claire Poole, 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer; and Dr Mercia Spare, Chief Nurse. 
 
The meeting was quorate. 
 

013/21 Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest given apart from those 
formally noted on the record. 
 

014/21 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 7 January 2021 
 
The minutes were read for accuracy.  
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The Minutes were AGREED. 
 

015/21 Matters Arising of the meeting of 7 January 2021 
 
034/2020 Mermikides Fund Update (iPads) – With regards to 
contacting Apple to negotiate a price for a bulk order of iPads, Jo 
Bing reported that she had not had any bids in for this kind of 
purchase.  
Gordon Flack confirmed that the Trust had bought some iPads for 
use in the community hospitals but that they had been purchased 
using specific Covid funding. Sola Afuape suggested that charitable 
funds could be used to provide support to patients such as 
providing reasonable adjustments if that was not already being 
done. It was agreed that Jo Bing would make internal enquiries and 
that Carol Coleman would contact Currys to find out whether it 
would be able to offer the Trust a suitable package of equipment 
and add ons.  
Action – Jo Bing 
Action – Carol Coleman  
 
In response to a question from Pippa Barber as to whether 
supporting patients through digital means was part of the Trust’s 
digital strategy, Gordon Flack commented that the strategy was 
being presented at the July Finance, Business and Investment 
Committee meeting. The aim of the strategy was to have an 
inclusion agenda and Sola Afuape suggested that she would bring 
her questions to that committee. 
 
The Matters Arising Table Actions Closed was agreed. 
 
The outstanding actions were discussed and updated as follows: 
 
023/19 Forward Plan (Sensory Room appeal) – A late bid had been 
received at the end of March 2021. A wish list of items had been 
drawn up and it was anticipated that there would be sufficient funds 
available to purchase the items. Once these had been purchased 
the fund would be closed. Action closed. 
020/2020 2020/21 Quarter One Finance Update (Amazon wish list) 
– It had been heavily promoted at Christmas. The list would remain 
on Amazon and re-promoted when required. Action closed. 
025/2020 eTapestry Essential Business Proposal – It was agreed to 
close the action and bring the item back to the Committee should it 
be decided that it could add value. Action closed. 
027/2020 Any other business (Liberty Pay) – The system was not 
appropriate for use in the community hospitals. Charitable giving 
was accessible through the Just Giving page and by texting 
donations. Pippa Barber suggested that some funds should be kept 
back in case it was decided in the future that Liberty Pay would be 
helpful in collecting donations. Action closed. 
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034/2020 (Update on project costs) – Fleur Cromarty joined the 
meeting to provide an update to the Committee on the Mermikides 
fund project. A summary of the current position was provided. 
Because of the impact of the pandemic on community hospital 
capacity, the service leads had agreed to release the tender in 
January 2022 with a view to the work starting in April 2022. The 
majority of the work would be funded out of the Trust’s capital plan 
but the full amount from the charitable fund would be included in the 
project’s costs. Francis Drobniewski was concerned that there 
should be evidence of some practical spending of the fund in the 
meantime in line with the wishes of the donor. In response to a 
question from Carol Coleman as to whether the recent inflationary 
pressures on construction costs would have an impact on the 
project, Fleur Cromarty confirmed that there would be a refresh of 
the financials but she believed the impact would be limited. 
 
In response to a question from Pippa Barber as to whether there 
could be some pockets of work done which were patient focussed if 
the main work package did not proceed as planned, Fleur Cromarty 
indicated her team could identify some smaller elements of work 
that benefitted the patient and service delivery. 
 
In response to a question from Sola Afuape as to whether there 
was any family or legal representative whose expectations were 
being managed in relation to the fund, Jo Treharne responded that 
the Trust had tried to contact the family through the solicitor but 
nothing had been forthcoming. The Committee discussed whether 
there should be further spend of the fund in the interim before the 
main refurbishment project began. Fleur Cromarty confirmed the 
items on the scoping list of internal upgrades which included a 
design for the internal courtyard gardens. It was suggested that it 
would be helpful to liaise with the League of Friends at Queen 
Victoria Memorial Hospital, Herne Bay to understand what funds 
they had and what they were planning to spend them on. Action 
open. 

006/21 2019/2020 Charity Report and Accounts (Administrative 
charge) – Carl Williams confirmed that this would be finalised as 
part of the 2021/22 accounts. Action closed. 

All other actions were closed. 
 

016/21 Relevant Feedback from Other Committees  
 

 There was nothing to report from the other committee meetings. 
017/21  Quarterly Statement Charitable Funds and Accounts and 

Spending Plans 
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Jo Bing presented the report to the Committee for assurance. 
 
There had been issues with the charitable funds ledger during the 
first quarter which meant that a written report was not available for 
the Committee at that time.  A summary of the financials was 
presented but the spend for the first quarter was omitted. Income 
had increased through the Just Giving page particularly for the 
HIV/AIDS fund which had recently received a donation in excess of 
£1k. the General Fund has also received donations to the value of 
£1k through the Just Giving page. Bids were being received from 
services. Work was underway with the Comms Team to make sure 
that the funds were being spent.  
 
The Committee NOTED the Quarterly Statement Charitable Funds 
and Accounts and Spending Plans. 
  

 018/21 Annual Financial Statement 
 
Jo Bing presented the report to the Committee for assurance. 
 
Income had been received to the value of £182k; £122k of which 
had come from the NHS Charities together. £58k of individual 
donations had been received which was an increase on the 
previous year. The funds had also received interest from their bank 
accounts. There had been £142k of spending; the main areas being 
around health and well-being. £53k had been spent on vouchers for 
staff. The main spend on purchases for patients had been by the 
Tonbridge Community Hospital for a dementia table. Specialist 
chairs had been bought for the Faversham Cottage Hospital and 
Deal Hospital. Sleeper chairs had also been purchased for all east 
Kent community hospitals. The Bow Road Fund (Wateringbury) had 
provided funds towards the surgery car parking as previously 
supported by the Committee and also home testing for patients.  
 
In response to a question from Pippa Barber as to whether 
charitable funds could support the purchase of more dementia 
tables if it was concluded that they met the needs of the patients, it 
was agreed the other community hospitals would be approached to 
see if they were evaluating them and to make them aware of the 
funding stream. 
Action – Jo Bing 
 
Pippa Barber commented that there might be a need for sleeper 
chairs in west Kent as well as east Kent. Gordon Flack requested 
that the figures for Quarter One be circulated as soon as they were 
ready. He added that the adult services were being reorganised 
under one management structure which might make it easier for 
unifying demand for purchases across all the hospitals in future. 
Action – Jo Bing 
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Jo Bing confirmed that Jane Kendal would be transferring her fund 
manager responsibilities to Dr Clare Thomas, the new Community 
Services Director.  
 
Francis Drobniewksi suggested that there could be a comms piece 
issued on the purchase of the dementia table, etc. He also 
requested that the recent governor survey on charitable funds 
spending should be circulated to the Committee. Gina Baines would 
speak to Joy Fuller to arrange this. 
Action – Gina Baines 
 
In response to a question from Carol Coleman as to whether the 
Children Therapies Service knew that any items still outstanding on 
the Amazon wish list could be purchased through a bid for 
charitable funds, Jo Treharne agreed to highlight this to the service.  
Action – Jo Treharne 

The Committee NOTED the Annual Financial Statement. 
  
019/21 Board Assurance Framework 

 
Gordon Flack presented the report to the Committee for assurance. 
 
With regards to the risks 103, 107 and 110, Francis Drobniewski 
suggested that they did not have a major impact on the Committee 
and should have a positive benefit to staff. Gordon Flack suggested 
that as the integrated care partnerships began to function there 
would be more opportunities to work with partners. 
 
The Committee NOTED the Board Assurance Framework. 

  
020/21 Charitable Funds Marketing Report including the annual 

marketing review, plan and objectives 
 
Jo Treharne presented the report to the Committee for assurance.   

 
The paper had been circulated late to the Committee. 

Sola Afuape thanked Steve Bamford on behalf of the Committee for 
his fundraising appeal and donation to the HIV/AIDs fund. She also 
highlighted that it would be worthwhile liaising with Kim Novis, 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Lead to improve the papers that 
came to the Committee. Jo Treharne agreed to contact Steve 
Bamford with the Committee’s message and to speak to Kim Novis 
as well. 
Action – Jo Treharne 
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Carol Coleman expressed interest in the Talking Together peer 
support group which the Sexual Health Service had set up and 
asked if a member of it would come to the Governor group to 
present. Gina Baines agreed to ask Joy Fuller to liaise with Carol 
Coleman and make the necessary arrangements. 
Action – Gina Baines 

It was reported that more work needed to be done on spending on 
outdoor furniture. Fleur Cromarty confirmed that Bryan Knope, 
Head of Estates Operations was reviewing all the requests that had 
been submitted to confirm which could and could not be done from 
an estates point of view  

The Committee NOTED the Charitable Funds Marketing Report 
including the annual marketing review, plan and objective. 
 

021/21 Sustainability Lead Presentation 
 
Dan Wright joined the meeting to present the report to the 
Committee for information. 
 

 Charitable funds were an invaluable income stream to support the 
Trust’s sustainability strategy as mainstream funding was not 
always available for what the Trust wanted to do, particularly 
around biodiversity and wildlife projects.  
 
The Committee agreed that it would support the Hawkhurst 
Community Hospital’s bid for a new shed when it was submitted. It 
would also support bids for garden furniture if services experienced 
bottlenecks in funding elsewhere. There would also be support for 
the funding of green space development at QVMH, Herne Bay 
which tied in with the Mermikides Fund.  
 
In response to a question from Sola Afuape as to how much of the 
sustainability work was proactive and how much was opportunistic, 
Dan Wright explained that his approach was to build and support on 
the passion shown by staff on the ground. For example, there was 
a community hospital vegetable garden being piloted at Hawkhurst 
Community Hospital.  If it was successful, then it would be rolled out 
to other interested community hospitals.  
 
In response to a further question from Sola Afuape as to whether 
charitable funds could support more resource intensive aspects of 
engaging with communities, Dan Wright commented that he was 
acutely aware that projects often fell apart because the funding 
ceased or key individuals left. He would welcome the charitable 
funds support in this area. The Committee agreed that the funds 
were unable to fund a post but could provide other resources.   
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In response to a question from Carol Coleman regarding Deal 
Hospital, Dan Wright confirmed that he had made contact with them 
but had been unable to identify a named individual. Carol Coleman 
agreed to follow this up for him. 
Action – Carol Coleman 
 
The Committee NOTED the Sustainability Lead Presentation. 
 

022/21 Reserves Policy 
 
Carl Williams presented the report to the Committee for approval. 
 
The Committee APPROVED the Reserves Policy 
 

023/21 
 

Forward Plan 
 
Francis Drobniewski presented the report to the Committee for 
approval. 
 

 The Committee AGREED the Forward Plan. 
 

024/21 Committee Effectiveness 
 
Francis Drobniewski presented the report to the Committee for 
approval. 
 

 It was agreed that the template would be used. It would be 
circulated to the members and those who attended regularly.  The 
feedback would be discussed at the meeting in November. 
Action – Gina Baines 
 
The Committee APPROVED the Committee Effectiveness. 
 

025/21 Any Other Business 
 
In response to a question from Carol Coleman as to whether Jo 
Bing had received a bid from Kim Novis for sunflower lanyards, Jo 
Bing confirmed she had not. Carol Coleman would speak to Kim 
Novis and suggest that she should make a request for funds. 
Action – Carol Coleman  

  
The meeting ended at 2pm.  
 

 Date and time of next meeting 
17 November 2021 at 11.30am in The Boardroom at The Oast, 
Hermitage Court, Hermitage Lane, Barming, Maidstone ME16 9NT  
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CONFIRMED Minutes of the Charitable Funds Committee meeting 

held on Wednesday 17 November 2021 
 

in the Boardroom, The Oast, Hermitage Court, Hermitage Lane, Barming, 
Maidstone ME16 9NT and on MS Teams 

 

 
Present: Prof. Francis Drobniewski, Non-Executive Director (Chair)  
 Sola Afuape, Non-Executive Director 
 Pippa Barber, Non-Executive Director  
 Carol Coleman, Public Governor, Dover and Deal 
In Attendance: Gina Baines, Committee Secretary (minute-taker) 
 Jo Bing, Assistant Financial Accountant (agenda items 2.2 and 

2.3) 
 Jo Treharne, Head of Campaigns (agenda item 2.2) 
 Carl Williams, Head of Financial Accounting (agenda item 2.1) 
  

 
026/21 Welcome and apologies for absence 

 
 Francis Drobniewski welcomed everyone present to the meeting of 

the Charitable Funds Committee.  
 
Apologies were received from Dawn Levett, Strategic Delivery 
Manager Urgent Care (East Kent); Claire Poole, Deputy Chief 
Operating Officer; Dr Mercia Spare, Chief Nurse and Jane 
Thackwray, Community Services Manager, Adult Clinical Services. 
 
The meeting was quorate. 
 
Carol Coleman announced that she would be standing down from 
the Committee. A new governor would be nominated to become a 
member. Francis Drobniewski thanked her for all the work she had 
done during her time as a member of the Committee.  
 

027/21 Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest given apart from those 
formally noted on the record. 
 

028/21 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 July 2021 
 
The minutes were read for accuracy.  
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The Minutes were AGREED. 
 

029/21 Matters Arising of the meeting of 14 July 2021 
 
The Matters Arising Table Actions Closed was agreed. 
 
The outstanding actions were discussed and updated as follows: 

034/2020 Mermikides Fund Update (purchase of digital devices) - 
Action open. 

034/2020 Mermikides Fund Update (update on project costs) - 
Agenda item at the January Committee meeting. Fleur Cromarty, 
Head of Estates Capital Projects would be invited to attend. Action 
open. 

020/21 Charitable Funds Marketing Report including the annual 
marketing review, plan and objectives (Governor action) – Action 
open. 

021/21 Sustainability Lead Presentation – Action open. 

025/21 Any Other Business – Jo Bing reported that she had not 
received any bids for this. Carol Coleman would email Kim Novis 
again and copy Jo Bing into the email. It was agreed to close the 
action. 

All other actions were closed. 
 

030/21 Relevant Feedback from Other Committees  
 

 There was nothing to report from the other committee meetings. 
 

031/21 Board Assurance Framework 
 
Francis Drobniewski presented the report to the Committee for 
assurance. 
 
The Committee NOTED the Board Assurance Framework. 
 

032/21 Draft 2020/21 Charity Report and Accounts for review and 
comment 
 
Carl Williams presented the report to the Committee for information 
and assurance. 
 
The committee was asked for its comment and feedback. The 
auditors were currently undertaking their independent examination 
of the accounts. Any specific comments from the committee would 
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be fed back to them and vice versa. The annual report and 
accounts would come to the Committee for approval in January 
2022. 
 
In response to a comment from Francis Drobniewski regarding the 
purchasing of Christmas gifts for the patients in the community 
hospitals, Jo Bing explained that the purchasing of presents had 
changed this year. Previously the Trust had funded the purchase of 
presents for patients in the east Kent community hospitals. In West 
Kent, this was funded by the community hospital League of Friends. 
This year the Trust’s charitable fund had received a bid for all the 
community hospitals across Kent. 
 
It was suggested that the amount of money spent on a Christmas 
gift for each patient in the community hospitals should be stated in 
the report. 
Action – Jo Bing 
 
In response to a question from Pippa Barber about the timescales 
for the approval of the accounts, Gina Baines confirmed that the 
Committee would approve the accounts at its meeting in January 
2022. The annual report and accounts would then be included on 
the agenda for the February Public Board meeting for information. 
Carl Williams confirmed that once the annual report and accounts 
had been approved, they would be submitted to the Charities 
Commission by the end of January 2022. In the interim, if the 
auditors made any further changes, the Committee would be 
informed by email. 
 
The Committee NOTED the Draft 2020/21 Charity Report and 
Accounts for review and comment 
 

033/21  Quarterly Statement Charitable Funds and Accounts  
 
Jo Bing presented the report to the Committee for assurance. 
 
With regards to the NHS Charities Together Stage Two grant for the 
Rough Sleepers project, Carl Williams clarified that if the Trust was 
successful with its application for £300k of funding, the money 
would not come to the charitable fund but rather to the Trust. Pippa 
Barber asked if the outstanding £49k in the NHS Charities Together 
fund could contribute to the project. Carl Williams explained that 
these were two distinct funds and projects, and therefore the 
outstanding money in the fund would not be able to contribute to 
the project.  
 
Carol Coleman highlighted that Dover had been selected for a 
nationwide project and that the One You Service would be the 
engine room of the project. She suggested that if funding could be 
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made available it could enhance the services given to the cohort of 
patients in the project. It was agreed that Jo Bing would contact 
Rebecca Hansell, One You Service Dover to discuss how fund 602 
could support the service. 
Action – Jo Bing 
 
The Committee NOTED the Quarterly Statement Charitable Funds 
and Accounts. 
 

 034/21 Update on the COVID-19 Health and Well-being Fund  
 
Jo Bing presented the report to the Committee for assurance and 
information. 
 
Carol Coleman commented that she had received feedback from 
some staff that because they had found the Team Treat funding 
difficult to access they had given up on arranging anything. Jo Bing 
responded that the process had been clear on flo. She had 
received a few queries about how to raise a requisition or setting up 
a new supplier but these had been resolved. Staff had had two 
options either to submit a requisition or to claim the costs on their 
expenses. Pippa Barber reported that Louise Norris, Director of 
Workforce, Organisational Development and Communications had 
agreed with the Board to follow up on those teams who had not 
taken up their Team Treats. Pippa Barber and Francis Drobniewski 
would follow that up with the Board. 
 
In response to a question from Sola Afuape as to whether those 
teams who had self-funded could be compensated, Carl Williams 
indicated that he would need to capture why they had self-funded 
and it was not clear who would do that.  
 
Francis Drobniewski asked the Committee for suggestions as to 
how the residual amount of circa £26k could be spent. The 
Committee could take a top down approach by suggesting the 
funding of food banks and vouchers for staff, or targeting 
particularly groups. Sola Afuape cautioned that the Committee be 
clear about its rationale for any such funding and how this might be 
perceived by staff.  
 
Carol Coleman was wary of Jo Treharne’s suggestion of creating a 
hardship fund that staff could apply to. Pippa Barber was also 
uncomfortable with this proposal and suggested that it would be for 
the executive to reach out to those staff who had not yet had their 
Team Treat. Vouchers would also be more equitable. Francis 
Drobniewski was not confident that the Trust would have the 
resource available to administer a hardship fund. Pippa Barber 
suggested that the money could go towards the next staff awards to 
cover the cost of tickets.  
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Carl Williams wondered what other organisations were using their 
funding for. He had read in a recent blog from NHS Charities 
Together, which had outlined how funds had been spent, that 
health and well-being for mental health resources had been 
highlighted.  
 
The Committee decided that it would not support a hardship fund at 
the current time and it was agreed that Victoria Robison-Collins, 
Director of People and Organisational Development would be 
asked to research how a food bank would be set up and the options 
for delivering it. Her findings would be considered by the Committee 
at its next meeting. 
Action – Victoria Robinson-Collins 
 
The Committee identified a number of options. The money could be 
spent on vouchers for all staff with no targeting, although Jo Bing 
indicated that this would not be possible. There was support for the 
concept of a food bank but this would need further discussion.  
Pippa Barber supported the suggestion around funding more health 
and well-being for mental health resources.  It was agreed to ask 
Victoria Robinson-Collins to work up a proposal for supporting staff 
and bring it to the January Committee meeting. 
Action – Victoria Robinson-Collins 
 
Sola Afuape questioned whether funds could be used to support 
the staff networks if they required investment as part of the Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. It was agreed that Victoria 
Robinson -Collins would be asked whether this would be possible. 
Action – Jo Bing 
 
The Committee NOTED the Update on the COVID-19 Health and 
Well-being fund. 
 

035/21 Charitable Funds Marketing Report 
 
Jo Treharne presented the Charitable Funds Marketing Report to 
the Committee for assurance. 
 
The Committee NOTED the Charitable Funds Marketing Report. 
 

036/21 Spending Plans 
 
Francis Drobniewski pointed out that there were a number of funds 
that were stubbornly underspent and suggested that a top down 
approach should be taken with fund managers to direct them 
towards what they could spend their funds on. He suggested the 
following items could be included on the list - Christmas presents 
for patients, iPads where retailers were able to offer a cheap deal, 
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and a budget for sustainability items.  He also suggested that four 
Omi Mobii Magic Tables for dementia patients could be purchased; 
one for Tonbridge Cottage Hospital, one for Victoria Hospital, Deal 
and two for Queen Victoria Memorial Hospital, Herne Bay, of which 
one would be funded from the Mermikides Fund.  
 
With regards to the Omi Mobii Magic Table, Carol Coleman asked 
that the after sales support should be reviewed. Sola Afuape 
highlighted that the product should be checked for IT 
interoperability and also its warranty. Francis Drobniewski 
confirmed that he had no interest in the company that sold the 
product. Pippa Barber added that it would be useful to hear from 
the dementia nurse at Tonbridge Community Hospital who had 
knowledge of the product. It was agreed to share the product video 
with Dr Mercia Spare, Chief Nurse and ask her to share the video 
with the community hospital matrons for their view as to whether 
they would wish to purchase one for their wards. Pippa Barber was 
concerned that they might not be used and suggested that to avoid 
this, the Tonbridge Cottage Hospital Matron should explain the 
benefits to her colleagues. It was agreed to ask Dr Mercia Spare 
that the review of the table include feedback from patients and to 
share that with the Matrons. As Francis Drobniewski stressed that 
this product could only be bought from restricted funds, Carol 
Coleman suggested that the local League of Friends could be 
approached to provide funding where necessary.  
Actions – Francis Drobniewski 
 
Jo Bing confirmed that Dan Wright, Head of Sustainability would be 
submitting bids for funding and it was agreed to ask him to submit 
his bids in time for the January Committee meeting. 
Action – Jo Bing  
 
Sola Afuape left the meeting. 
 
With regards to the purchase of iPads, Pippa Barber was 
uncomfortable with this suggestion and it was agreed to ask Dr 
Mercia Spare to ask the community hospital matrons whether they 
would like to purchase some for use by the patients on their wards. 
Action – Mercia Spare 
 
With regards to the Mermikides Fund, Francis Drobniewski was 
looking for a plan B. He suggested whether staff of Heron Ward, 
Queen Victoria Memorial Hospital, Herne Bay would like an office-
type room for patients, similar to the summer house. Space had 
been identified in the central courtyard. Carol Coleman suggested 
whether new beds or equivalent could be purchased in advance of 
the refurbishment. Pippa Barber would be happy to support that; 
she also asked for confirmation that the build would be going ahead 
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in April 2022. It was agreed that this would be discussed with Fleur 
Cromarty when she attended the January meeting. 
 
The Committee NOTED the Spending Plans report. 
 

037/21 
 

Forward Plan 
 
Francis Drobniewski presented the report to the Committee for 
approval. 
 

 The Committee AGREED the Forward Plan. 
 

038/21 Committee Effectiveness 
 
Francis Drobniewski presented the report to the Committee for 
approval. 

  
Francis Drobniewski proposed that the Committee met for an 
extraordinary meeting to finalise the expenditure. It was agreed that 
a hold would be put in everyone’s diary for 10 December at 12.30 
but this would be dependent on whether feedback on spending 
plans had been progressed. 
Action – Gina Baines 
 
The Committee APPROVED the Committee Effectiveness. 
 

039/21 Any Other Business 
  

 The meeting ended at 1.05pm.  
 

 Date and time of next meeting 
20 January 2022 at 12 noon in The Boardroom at The Oast, 
Hermitage Court, Hermitage Lane, Barming, Maidstone ME16 9NT  
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Report of the Trustee for the year ended 31 March 2021 

Foreword 

The Trustee presents their annual report and the audited financial statements for the 

period ended 31 March 2021. 

The annual report and financial statements comply with the charity’s trust deed, 

applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom and the Statement of 

Recommended Practice (Charities SORP FRS 102) “Accounting and Reporting by 

Charities” second edition issued in October 2019 for reporting periods effective from 

1 January 2019 and the Charities Act 2011. 

Reference and Administrative Details 

Name and address of Charity: Kent Community Health Charitable Fund          

Trust HQ, The Oast,                                           

Unit D, Hermitage Court,                          

Hermitage Lane,                                                

Barming,                                                             

Kent, ME16 9NT                       Tel: 01622 939747 

Registered Charity Number: 1139134 

Other Name Used by Charity: i care 

Trustee Arrangements: 

Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Charity. 
The Board of Directors (Voting Board Members) who served Kent Community Health 
NHS Foundation Trust during the year to 31 March 2021 were as follows: 

 

 

 

 

Name Position on Trust Board *Additional Info.

John Goulston Chairman

Paul Bentley Chief Executive Officer 

Pauline Butterworth Chief Operating Officer

Gordon Flack Director of Finance/Deputy CEO

Mercia Spare Chief Nurse 

Dr Sarah Phillips Medical Director

Louise Norris Director of Workforce, OD & Communications

Gerard Sammon Director of Strategy and Partnerships

Peter Conway Vice Chairman, Non Executive Director

Sola Afuape Non Executive Director

Pippa Barber Non Executive Director

Paul Butler Non Executive Director

Bridget Skelton Non Executive Director

Francis Drobniewski Non Executive Director

Nigel Turner Non Executive Director
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The Board of Directors are also informed by the views of the Council of Governors. 

For further information on the Trust’s Board of Directors, its full Leadership Team and 
the Council of Governors please visit www.kentcht.nhs.uk 

 

Bankers: Natwest Bank,                                                     
Corporate & Institutional Banking,                                                             
9th Floor, 280 Bishopsgate,                                                                
London, EC2M 4RB 

Independent Examiner: Grant Thornton UK LLP,                                                 
30 Finsbury Square,                                                                                                                              
London, EC2A 1AG 

 

Structure, Governance and Management of the Charitable Funds       

The charity was created by Trust Deed and is registered with the Charities 
Commission as Kent Community Health Charitable Fund (Registered Charity No. 
1139134). The primary object of the charity, as stated in its governing document, 
requires the Trustee to ‘hold the trust fund upon trust to apply income, and at its 
discretion, so far as may be permissible, the capital, for the general purpose of Kent 
Community Health NHS Foundation Trust’. 

Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the funds 
held on trust.  

The Executive and Non-Executive Directors of Kent Community Health NHS 
Foundation Trust Board share the responsibility for ensuring that the NHS body fulfils 
its duties as corporate trustee in managing the charitable funds. 

The board of Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust, on behalf of the 
Corporate Trustee, has delegated to the Charitable Funds Committee (CFC) the 
responsibility to ensure charitable funds held are being managed and accounted for in 
accordance with the terms of NHS Charities Guidance and Charities Law. Membership 
of the Committee includes 2 non-executive directors and the Director of 
Finance/Deputy Chief Executive and the Chief Operating Officer. The Chair of the 
Charitable Funds Committee for 2020-21 was Francis Drobniewski (Non-Executive 
Director). All members of the CFC have regard to the principles outlined in the 
Charities Commission’s guidance on public benefit and annual bids/spending plans 
are requested to ensure the most effective use of resources. 

Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust is committed to providing a first class 
and comprehensive healthcare service for the people within their area of responsibility.  
The Trustee is determined that the charity will continue to prosper, and support 
delivery of improved patient care for both revenue and capital projects. 
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Financial Review 

The net assets of the charity as at 31 March 2021 were £706k (2019-20 £666k). 

Income Generation 

Income during the year totalled £182k (2019-20 £172k) and includes income from 
donations, grants received from NHS Charities Together and interest earned from 
bank accounts.   

The total value of grants received from NHS Charities Together in 2020-21 totalled 
£122k and is further analysed in the following table: 

 

Income from donations totalled £58k (2019-20 £28k). The reported increase in the 
main was due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the resultant increase in 
donations from individuals and campaigns run through the Charity’s Just Giving page. 

Nil income was received from legacies in 2020-21 (2019-20 £140k).  

2020-21 has been a year like no other and the Trustee would like to thank all donors 
who have made contributions to the charity during the year and is very grateful for the 
donations received and the impact these donations have had.   

Resources Expended 
Expenditure during the period totalled £142k (2019-20 £69k), of which £78k was 
expended on staff welfare and amenities and £46k on patients’ welfare and amenities. 
Headline expenditure values for 2020-21 were as follows: 

- Vouchers for staff health & wellbeing £37k* 
- Pin badges and supporting materials for staff £8k*  
- Health & Wellbeing magazine & thank you letter £8k* 
- Children’s packs for staff children & grandchildren £3k* 
- Omni Vista interactive table projector £9k 
- Specialist chairs for the day room at Faversham Cottage Hospital £5k 
- Sleeper chairs for all East Kent Community hospitals and for Westbrook & 

Westview £3k 
- Car park extension & lighting for Wateringbury surgery £15k 
- Medical equipment to assist asthma diagnosis, blood pressure monitoring & 

spirometry testing at home £5k 
 

*all funded from grants received from NHS Charities Together during 2020-21 

Grant Description
Date 

Received

Amount 

Received

NHS Charities Together (Initial Award) Stage 1 of the Covid-19 Urgent 

Appeal Scheme - To be spent on enhancing the well-being of NHS staff, 

volunteers and patients impacted by Covid-19 08/04/2020 35,000    

NHS Charities Together (Second Award) Stage 1 of the Covid-19 Urgent 

Appeal Scheme - To be spent on enhancing the well-being of NHS staff, 

volunteers and patients impacted by Covid-19 01/05/2020 35,000    

NHS Charities Together (Starbucks Christmas Grant) - To support our 

ongoing response to the Covid-19 crisis 16/12/2020         2,100 

NHS Charities Together (Second Wave Grant) - To be spent on 

enhancing the wellbeing of NHS staff, patients & volunteers impacted 

by the second wave of Covid-19 02/02/2021      50,000 

Total 122,100  
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Investment powers, policy and performance 

The charity’s investment powers require funds to be managed by robust financial 
organisations so as to maximise the return on the funds, whilst minimising risk 
accordingly and to ensure that the funds are easily accessible for spending in 
accordance with the charity’s objectives.  

Charitable Funds are held as cash in Government Banking Service accounts and in 
the form of short term liquid investments held for a period of 60 days’ notice. Where 
funds are invested in the latter form, the deposit is arranged via the Charities Aid 
Foundation (CAF) and is therefore exclusively for charitable organisations. 
 
Non NHS Grant making policy 
Grants are made, at the discretion of the Trustee, where the spending meets the objects 
of the charity.  No grants were made to Non-NHS organisations during the 2020-21 
financial period (2019-20 Nil). 
 
Reserves Policy 

The reserves policy agreed by the Charitable Funds Committee is that no minimum level 
of reserves is maintained. 
 
A scheme of delegation operates through which all grant funded activity and support 
costs are managed and authorised by relevant seniority thus enabling the facilitation 
of a fully accountable, effective and efficient management of the funds held. This in 
turn ensures sufficient and appropriate controls are in place to prevent the over-
commitment of the charitable funds. 
 
Risk Management 

At the time of approval of the accounts the Trustee has reviewed the major strategic, 
business and operational risks (including those relating to the Covid-19 pandemic and 
response) to which the charity is exposed. 
 
The evident growth in public support for the NHS has been demonstrated through 
increased donations during 2020-21 and the strong governance structure in place 
ensures continued effective stewardship and achievement of the charity’s objectives. 

Trustee Responsibilities 

The Trustee is required by charity law to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year or period which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and 
of the surplus or deficit of the charity as at the end of the financial period. 

In preparing those accounts the Trustee is required to: 

• Confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied 
consistently; 

• Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

• Confirm that applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to 
any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts and that the 
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. 

The Trustee is also responsible for:  
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Keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Charities Act 2011; and 

Safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
2020-21 Key Highlights 
 
COVID-19 
The public’s overwhelming support of the NHS was demonstrated through increased 
donations during the Covid-19 pandemic, particularly the national emergency appeal 
managed by NHS Charities Together. The 2020-21 financial year saw grants totalling 
£122k received from NHS Charities Together to support the health and wellbeing of 
our staff, volunteers and patients through the pandemic and £35k resulting from 
individuals’ fundraising and donations.  
 
Donations arrived from all areas of the community, mainly in response to the national 
support for NHS workers. 
 
NHS Community Heroes Fund  
This fund was quickly set up as it became apparent that people were donating money 
specifically for the health and wellbeing of colleagues. We promptly established a 
dedicated campaign page on Just Giving to channel donations 
www.justgiving.com/campaign/NHScommunityheroes. Anyone setting up a fundraiser 
on the page received a certificate from i care once their 
appeal was completed. We also promoted individual 
fundraisers on the i care Facebook page and on the Kent 
Community Health NHS Foundation Trust Facebook 
page to encourage more donations and to express our 
thanks to the fundraisers. 
 
 
NHS Charities Together 
Who can forget the incredible Sir Captain 
Tom Moore and the millions he raised for 
NHS charities. i care was one of dozens of 
charities throughout the NHS to receive 
funding to support staff through the 
pandemic.  
 
With this funding we were able to: 

- deliver a campaign that saw Trust 
staff claim a £10 voucher to support 
their health and wellbeing. Vouchers 
from various shops, restaurants, garden centres etc were offered for Trust 
staff to claim and spend on themselves and their families. 

- provide a ‘Together’ badge for Trust staff members to wear with pride and 
recognition of their efforts along with a thank you card. 

- send out colouring packs for the children of Trust staff to say thank you for 
supporting their parents and loved ones as they worked tirelessly through 
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the pandemic. This was seen as a real morale boost and thank you to the 
families of staff members for all the sacrifice and adjustments that they had 
made during the pandemic. 

- distribute a dedicated health and wellbeing booklet for all staff members with 
a thank you letter from the Chief Executive. The booklet provided detail of 
goods and services available to staff members to promote their health and 
wellbeing, with a message to reassert support to staff in saying “it is ok not 
to be ok” and to request help if required.    

 
Future plans for this funding include purchasing outdoor furniture for some of the 
Trust’s sites for staff and patients to enjoy. To reward Trust staff for their inspirational 
and courageous response to Covid-19, the monies will also be used to fund a “Team 
Treat” (an activity, outing or purchase of items) to support the staff’s health and 
wellbeing. 
 
Bow Road Property Fund 

 

Funding enabled the car park at Wateringbury surgery to be 
expanded allowing for additional spaces and to action repairs.   
 
Medical equipment was also purchased from allocated funds to allow 
asthma diagnosis, blood pressure monitoring and spirometry testing 
within the home environment for patients who are housebound.  
 
 
Community Hospitals 

 
The purchase of an Omni Vista Interactive projector 
table was funded at Tonbridge Cottage Hospital. The 
equipment supports the role of the therapeutic worker, 
dementia link workers and the physio team by using 
interactive activities to support patients requiring physio 
and also helping those with limited mobility to improve 
movement. The equipment also supports patients with 
dementia by improving their hospital stay by providing 

exercises that will remind them of happy memories which in turn aids their well-being 
and reduces their anxiety whilst being in a different environment.  
 
Sleeper chairs for all of the East Kent Community hospitals and units at Westview and 
Westbrook were procured. These chairs can be used by patients during the day and 
can also offer a comfortable place for relatives to sleep whilst a family member is in 
hospital. 
 
A number of chairs were purchased at Faversham Cottage Hospital and Deal Victoria 
Hospital to enhance the comfort of patients and visitors. These included 2 riser recliner 
chairs to assist patients and multiple armchairs to be located outside every patient bay 
and side room. 
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Staff Wellness           
 
The staff football team was funded for another season with additional kit purchased 
along with the funding for a training venue. The team trains once a week and current 

players have commented on the benefits being 
part of the team brings to them from both a 
physical and mental perspective. The team has 
helped the standing of the Trust in the community 
with matches being played against teams from 
various other organisations.  
 
 

Donation methods 
 
We have a just giving page and within this we can set up various pages for each 
fund/appeal. Just Giving automatically pay donations via text or on the website into 
our Charitable Fund account on a monthly basis. They also calculate and reclaim any 
gift aid on our behalf and also pay this directly.  
https://www.justgiving.com/icare 
 

Donors are still able to send in cheques, made payable to Kent Community 
Health Charitable Fund. The acknowledgement forms include a wish to gift 
aid section. 
 
 

Charity Mission Statement 
 
i care (Kent Community Health Charitable Fund) is a registered charity that helps pay 
for services and items which enhance patient care, as well as boost patients’ and staff 
morale, but which cannot be funded by the NHS. We support the trust’s aim of 
delivering first-class, comprehensive healthcare while looking after the health and 
wellbeing of the people providing that service. 
                    

A big thank you 

On behalf of staff and patients who have benefitted from improved services due to 
donations and legacies, the Corporate Trustee would like to thank all patients and their 
relatives and the staff of the Trust who have made charitable donations. 
 

By order of the Trustee 

Signed:  

Francis Drobniewski, Chair of the Charitable Funds Committee 

Date: 20 January 2022 
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Independent examiner's report to the trustees of  

Kent Community Health Charitable Fund  

I report on the accounts of Kent Community Health Charitable Fund for the year ended 31 March 2021, which are set out 

on pages 13 to 23.  

Independent examiner's statement 

In connection with my examination, no matter has come to my attention: 

• which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect, the requirements: 
− to keep accounting records in accordance with section 130 of the Charities Act 2011; and 

− to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records; and 

− to comply with the applicable requirements concerning the form and content of accounts set out in the 

Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008    

have not been met, or 

• to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the accounts to be 

reached. 

Basis of independent examiner's statement 

My examination was carried out in accordance with the general Directions given by the Charity Commission. An 

examination includes a comparison of the accounts with the accounting records kept by the charity. It also includes 

consideration of any unusual items or disclosures in the accounts and seeking explanations from you as corporate trustee 

concerning any such matters. The procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an 

audit, and consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts present a 'true and fair' view and the report is 

limited to those matters set out in the statement above. 

Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner 

The charity's trustees are responsible for the preparation of the accounts. The charity's trustees consider that an audit is 

not required for this year under section 144(2) of the Charities Act 2011 and that an independent examination is needed.  

It is my responsibility to: 

• examine the accounts under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011; 

• to follow the procedures laid down in the general Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) 

of the Charities Act 2011; and  

• to state whether particular matters have come to my attention. 

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the charity's trustees have prepared the charity's accounts in accordance with the 

Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice 

applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK 

and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) effective 1 January 2019) issued October 2019 in preference to the Statement of 

Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice (revised 2005)' 

issued in April 2005 which is referred to in the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 but has been withdrawn. 

I understand that the charity's trustees have done this in order for the charity's accounts to give a true and fair view in 

accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice effective for reporting periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2019.   
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Use of this report 

This report is in respect of an examination carried out under section 145 of the Charities Act 2011. This report is made 

solely to the charity's corporate trustee, as a body, in accordance with the regulations made under section 154 of the 

Charities Act 2011. My work has been undertaken so that I might state to the charity's trustees those matters I am required 

to state to them in an independent examiner's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, I do 

not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's trustee, as a body, for my work, for 

this report or for the opinions I have formed. 

 

 
 

Sarah Ironmonger, FCPFA 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

London 

27/01/2022 
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ending 31 March 2021 

 

 

All results stated in the above Statement of Financial Activities derive from 

continuing operations. 

The notes at pages 16 to 23 form part of this account. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020-21 2019-20

Statement of Financial Activities for the 

year ended 31 March 2021 Note

Unrestricted 

Funds 

£000s

Restricted 

Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Income from:

Donations and Legacies 2.1 58 122 180 168

Investment - Bank Interest 2.2 0 2 2 4

Total Income 58 124 182 172

Expenditure on:

Charitable Activities 3.1 11 131 142 69

Total Expenditure 11 131 142 69

Net Income/(Expenditure) 47 (7) 40 103

Other Recognised Gains/(Losses) 0 0 0 0

Net Movement in funds 47 (7) 40 103

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 103 563 666 563

Total funds carried forward 150 556 706 666
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 

 

The notes at pages 16 to 23 form part of this account. 

The financial statements on pages 13 to 15 were approved and authorised for issue 

by the Trustee on 20 January 2022. 

 

Signed:  

Name: Francis Drobniewski, Chair of the Charitable Funds Committee 

Date: 20 January 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020-21 2019-20

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 Note

Unrestricted 

Funds 

£000s

Restricted 

Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0

Current Assets:

Debtors 8 0 1 1 1

Cash and cash equivalents 10 157 583 740 668

Total Current Assets 157 584 741 669

Liabilities:

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 9 7 28 35 3

Total Net Assets 150 556 706 666

Funds of the Charity: 11

Restricted Income Funds 0 556 556 563

Unrestricted Income Funds 150 0 150 103

Total Funds of the Charity 150 556 706 666
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net 

cash flow from operating activities

2020-21 

£000s

2019-20 

£000s

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period 

(as per the Statement of Financial Activities) 40 103

Adjustments for:

Dividends, interest and rents from investments (2) (4)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors 0 (1)

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 32 1

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 70 99

2020-21 2019-20

Statement of Cash Flows

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 70 99

Cash flows from investing activities:

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 2 4

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2 4

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the 

reporting period 72 103

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period 668 565

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

reporting period 740 668

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020-21 

£000s

2019-20 

£000s

Cash at bank and in hand 439 367

Notice deposits (less than 3 months) 301 301

Total cash and cash equivalents 740 668

C
ha

rit
ab

le
 F

un
ds

 2
02

0/
21

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t &
 A

cc
ou

nt
s

Page 101 of 189



Kent Community Health Charitable Fund 
 

16 
 

 

Notes to the Accounts 

1 Accounting Policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 

cost convention with the exception of investments which are held at fair value. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and 

Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to Charities 

preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 

applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued in October 2019 and 

effective from 1 January 2019; the Charities Act 2011 and UK GAAP as it applies from 

1 January 2019. 

The financial statements have been prepared to give a true and fair view and have 

departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the 

extent required to provide a true and fair view. This departure has involved following 

Accounting and Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with 

the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 

102) issued in October 2019 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: 

Statement of Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has been 

withdrawn.  

Kent Community Health Charitable Fund represents a public benefit entity as defined 

by FRS 102. 

The Trustee considers that there are no material uncertainties that exist with the Kent 

Community Health Charitable Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. This 

assessment also considers the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and response. 

The principle accounting polices applied in the preparation of the financial statements 

are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented 

unless otherwise stated. 

1.2 Income Recognition 

a) All incoming resources are recognised in full in the Statement of Financial 

Activities when the following criteria are met: 

• Entitlement – control over the rights or other access to the economic 

benefit has passed to the charity. 

• Probable – it is more likely than not that the economic benefits 

associated with the transaction or gift will flow to the charity. 

Page 102 of 189



Kent Community Health Charitable Fund 
 

17 
 

• Measurement – the monetary value or amount of the income can be 

measured reliably and the costs incurred for the transaction and the 

costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

b) Income from donations is recognised when there is evidence of entitlement to 

the gift, the receipt is probable and its amount can be measured reliably. 

c) Receipt of a legacy is recognised as an incoming resource when it is probable 

that the legacy will be received. Receipt is normally probable when: 

• there has been grant of probate; 

• the executors have established that there are sufficient assets in the 

estate, after settling any liabilities, to pay the legacy; and 

• any conditions attached to the legacy are either within the control of the  

charity or have been met. 

d) Gifts in kind, such as food and care packages are not accounted for when they 

are accepted and immediately distributed unless a single donation is material. 

 

1.3 Expenditure Recognition 

All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and is recognised when all of the 

following criteria are met: 

• Obligation – a present legal or constructive obligation exists at the reporting 

date as a result of a past event. 

• Probable – it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits, often 

cash, will be required in settlement. 

• Measurement – the amount of the obligation can be measured or estimated 

reliably. 

a) Grants payable are payments made to third parties (including NHS bodies) in 

furtherance of the charity’s charitable objectives. They are accounted for on an 

accruals basis where the conditions for their payment have been met or where 

a third party has a reasonable expectation that they will receive a grant. This 

includes grants paid to NHS bodies. 

b) Charitable activities expenditure comprise of all costs incurred in the pursuit of 

the objectives of the charity. These costs include direct costs and an 

apportionment of overhead and support costs as reflected in note 4 to the 

financial statements.  

c) Raising funds includes the costs attributed to generating income for the charity.  

d) Support costs are those costs which do not relate directly to a single activity. 

Support costs include costs associated with finance, governance and other 

central costs which support or relate to more than one area of activity. These 

costs are allocated to charitable activities and raising funds on the basis of their 

proportion of total resource expended. 

e) Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the category of resources expended for which 

it was incurred. 
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1.4 Structure of Funds 

Unrestricted funds are resources held which are available for use at the discretion of 

the Trustee in furtherance of the general objectives of the charity and which have not 

been designated for other purposes. 

Designated funds are a portion of the unrestricted funds that have been set aside by 

the Trustee for particular purposes, normally reflecting the non-binding wishes of the 

donors.     

Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions 

imposed by donors or which have been raised by the charity for particular purposes.  

The cost of raising and administering such funds is charged against the specific fund.  

The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to the financial 

statements on page 22 (note 11.2). 

1.5 Tangible and Intangible Fixed Assets 

The Charitable Fund had no tangible or intangible fixed assets for 2020-21 (2019-20 

Nil). 

1.6 Fixed Asset Investments 

Fixed asset investments are held to generate income or for their investment potential, 

or both. Investment gains and losses arising during the reporting period are recorded 

in the Statement of Financial Activities. Fixed asset investments in quoted shares, 

traded bonds and similar investments are measured initially at cost and subsequently 

at fair value at the reporting date. 

Dividend income from fixed asset investments is included in the period in which it is 

received and is allocated to funds based on the average balance of the funds across 

the period during which the income accrued. 

The Charitable Fund had no fixed asset investments for 2020-21 (2019-20 Nil). 

1.7 Realised and Unrealised Gains/Losses 

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise 

and allocated to the relevant fund. Realised gains and losses on investments are 

calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening market value (or 

date of purchase if later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference 

between market value at the year-end and opening market value (or date of purchase 

if later). 
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1.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at bank and in hand and short-term 

highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of 

acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account. 

Bank interest is allocated to funds in direct proportion to that fund’s share of the total 

bank balance. 

1.9 Stocks and Work in Progress 

The Charitable Fund had no stocks or work in progress for 2020-21 (2019-20 Nil). 

1.10 Transfers between funds 

Transfers between funds are made at the discretion of the Trustee. There were no 

transfers between funds during the reporting period 2020-21 (2019-20 Nil). 

2. Analysis of Income 

2.1 Donations and Legacies 

 

In 2020-21, the Charity received grants from NHS Charities Together totalling £122k. 

2.2 Gross Income from Investments 

 

Bank interest is recorded in the period in which it is received and is allocated to funds 

in direct proportion to that fund’s share of the total bank balance. 

3. Analysis of Expenditure – Grants payable to NHS Bodies 

2020-21 2019-20

Donations and Legacies

Unrestricted 

Funds 

£000s

Restricted 

Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Donations from individuals and groups 48 0 48 28

Corporate donations 10 0 10 0

Grants 0 122 122 0

Legacies 0 0 0 140

Total Donations and Legacies 58 122 180 168

2020-21 2019-20

Income from Investments and Cash 

on Deposit

Unrestricted 

Funds 

£000s

Restricted 

Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Bank and Building Society Interest 0 2 2 4

Total Income from Investments and 

Cash on Deposit 0 2 2 4
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All grants are made to Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust. 

 

3.1 Expenditure on Charitable Activities 

 

4. Allocation of Support Costs and Overheads 

 

5. Trustee Remuneration, Benefits and Expenses 

No representative of the Trustee received any remuneration or re-imbursement of 

expenses from the Charitable Fund. 

6. Analysis of Staff Costs 

The charity had no employees for the reporting period 2020-21 (2019-20 Nil) and 

therefore does not pay any salaries, national insurance and pension contributions 

direct. Costs for staff incurred by Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust are 

recharged to the Charitable Fund in the form of an administration fee. The 

administration fee for 2020-21 was a total of £15k (2019-20 £15k). 

7. Auditor’s Remuneration 

External Auditor’s remuneration of £2k including VAT (2019-20 £2k including VAT) 

relates solely to the agreed Independent Examination fee for the 2020-21 Charitable 

Funds annual report and accounts. 

 

 

2020-21 2019-20

Charitable Activities

Total Funds 

£000s

Total Funds 

£000s

Patients welfare and amenities 46 34

Staff welfare and amenities 78 17

Support costs 18 18

Total Charitable Activities 142 69

2020-21 2019-20

Support Costs and Overheads

Charitable 

Activities 

£000s

Raising 

Funds 

£000s

Total 

Support 

Costs and 

Overheads 

£000s

Total 

Support 

Costs and 

Overheads 

£000s

Independent Examination - External Audit 2 0 2 2

Administration - Finance 15 0 15 15

Other 1 0 1 1

Total Support Costs and Overheads 18 0 18 18

Page 106 of 189



Kent Community Health Charitable Fund 
 

21 
 

 

 

8. Debtors Analysis 

 

9. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents relate to those funds held in Government Banking Service 

(GBS) bank accounts and on short-term investment (60 day notice deposit). The 

deposit account is provided by Shawbrook Bank Ltd and is made available through 

the Charities Aid Foundation. 

11. Funds of the Charity 

11.1 Analysis of Charitable Funds held 

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2020

Debtors: amounts falling due within one year Total £000s Total £000s

Prepayments 1 1

Total Charitable Activities 1 1

31 March 

2021

31 March 

2020

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year Total £000s Total £000s

Other Creditors 35 3

Total Creditors 35 3
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11.2 Restricted Funds detail 

 

12. Analysis of Net Assets between Funds 

The net assets are held for the various funds as follows: 

 

13. Related Party Transactions 

Board members of Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust which is the 

Corporate Trustee of the charity are also members of the committee which is 

Balance at 1 

April 2020

Incoming 

Resources

Resources 

Expended Transfers

Gains and 

Losses

Balance at 

31 March 

2021

Restricted Funds  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s £000s

Community Hospitals Restricted 243 1 (28) - - 216

Deal Hospital 43 - (1) - - 42

Bow Road Property 44 - (21) - - 23

Sensory Room appeal 3 - (2) - - 1

Mermikides - Heron Ward 200 1 (5) - - 196

Covid19 - NHS Charities Together - 122 (73) - - 49

NHS Services in Dover 30 - (1) - - 29

Total Restricted Funds 563 124 (131) - - 556

Balance at 1 

April 2020

Incoming 

Resources

Resources 

Expended Transfers

Gains and 

Losses

Balance at 

31 March 

2021

Unrestricted Funds  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s £000s

Unrestricted Funds 103 58 (11) - - 150

Total Unrestricted Funds 103 58 (11) - - 150

Balance at 1 

April 2020

Incoming 

Resources

Resources 

Expended Transfers

Gains and 

Losses

Balance at 

31 March 

2021

Total Funds 666 182 (142) - - 706

Name of Fund Description of the nature and purpose of each fund

Community Hospitals 

This fund includes all legacies received for the following Community Hospitals; 

Faversham Cottage Hospital, Whitstable & Tankerton Hospital, Deal Hospital, 

Queen Victoria Memorial Hospital, Sheppey Hospital, Sevenoaks & Tonbridge 

Cottage Hospital. All legacies are for the general purpose of the hospitals

Deal Hospital Any charitable purpose relating to NHS wholly or mainly for Deal hospital

Bow Road Property

Community healthcare for the benefit of the residents of Wateringbury and

Nettlestead.

Sensory Room To provide and equip a Sensory Room at Heathside Children's Centre, Maidstone

NHS Services in Dover For the use and benefit of NHS medical services in Dover 

Mermikides - Heron Ward QVMH To be used for the purpose of Heron Ward at QVMH only

Covid19 - NHS Charities Together

Grants from NHS Charities Together to be spent on enhancing the well-being of NHS 

staff, volunteers and patients impacted by Covid-19

Tangible 

Fixed Assets

Fixed Asset 

Investments

Net Current 

Assets/(Liabilities

Long Term 

Liabilities

2020-21 

Total

2019-20 

Total

Fund Classification  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s  £000s £000s

Restricted Funds - - 556 - 556 563

Unrestricted Funds - - 150 - 150 103

Total Restricted Funds - - 706 - 706 666
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empowered by the Trustee to act on its behalf in the day to day administration of all 

funds held on trust, which is the Charitable Funds Committee (CFC). 

Board members of Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust, the Corporate 

Trustee, and members of CFC ensure that the business of the charity is dealt with 

separately from that associated with exchequer funds for which they are also 

responsible. 

During the year neither the Corporate Trustee nor members of the key management 

staff or parties related to it has undertaken any material transactions with or received 

any remuneration or expenses from the Kent Community Health Charitable Fund. 

The charity made revenue payments to the Kent Community Health NHS Foundation 

Trust to the value of £142k as detailed in note 3. As at 31 March 2021 £35k (2019-20 

£3k) was owed to the Kent Community Health NHS Foundation Trust.   

14. Commitments 

The charity has commitments totalling £11k at 31 March 2021 (2019-20 £20k) arising 

from approved bids and requisitions placed for which the relevant goods and services 

have not been received. 

 

15. Events after the end of the reporting period 

There are no events after the reporting period. The continued response to the Covid-

19 pandemic after 31 March 2021 has not been deemed to impact the 2020-21 annual 

accounts presented.  
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to any other 
committee? 

The papers summarise the Finance, Business and Investment Committee 
meetings held on 22 November and 21 December 2021 and provides assurance to 
the Board. A verbal update will be given on the meeting held on 3 February 2022. 

 

Summary of key points 

The November meeting covered a range of topics including the estates strategy as 
well as a deep dive into the Estates cost improvement programme (CIP) schemes. 
There was a review of the capital plan and forecast. 
 
An additional Committee meeting was arranged for 21 December to review the 
tendering process and proposal for the Edenbridge development. 

 

Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee or Board 

The Board is asked to receive the Finance, Business and Investment Committee 
Chair’s Assurance Report. 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 2.5 

Agenda Item Title: 
  Finance, Business and Investment Committee 
Chair’s Assurance Report 

Presenting Officer: 
 Paul Butler, Chair of Finance, Business and 
Investment Committee  

Action – this paper is for: 
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Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
 

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

The Committee has asked authors to consider their papers through the equality 
and diversity lens and highlight any issues in their papers. 

 

Name: 
 

Paul Butler 
      

Job title: Non-Executive Director 

Telephone 
number: 
 

01622 211906 Email      
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to 
any other committee? 
The report summarises the Strategic Workforce Committee meetings held on 22 
November 2021 and 10 January 2022 and provides assurance to the Board.  

 

Summary of key points 

A range of topics was discussed at both meetings including the relevant risks on 
the Board Assurance Framework, Operational Workforce report, People Strategy 
update, digital HR bots and digital implications on workforce, Equality Diversity and 
Inclusion Strategy Update, Health and Wellbeing report and the transformation of 
the workforce. Topics covered at the extraordinary meeting included information 
regarding the Paterson Enquiry, an update on turnover and sickness levels and 
staff vaccination status. 
 

 

Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee or Board 

The Board is asked to receive the Strategic Workforce Committee Chair’s 
Assurance Report. 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 2.7 

Agenda Item Title: 
Strategic Workforce Committee Chair’s Assurance 
Report 

Presenting Officer: 
Bridget Skelton, Chair of Strategic Workforce 
Committee  
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If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

 
 No 

(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
   

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in the paper 

 

 

Name: 
 

Bridget Skelton Job title: Non-Executive Director 

Telephone 
number: 
 

01622 211900 Email      
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to 
any other committee? 
 
In line with national guidance on learning from deaths, since April 2021, KCHFT 
has collected and published mortality data quarterly via a paper to Quality 
Committee and Public Board, which must include mortality data and learning 
points.  Guidance states this data should include the total number of the Trust’s 
inpatient deaths and those deaths that the Trust has subjected to case record 
review.  Of those deaths reviewed, the Trust must report how many deaths were 
judged more likely than not to have been due to problems in care.  The Committee 
is asked to note Quarter 2’s data and learning points described in this report, for 
assurance.  Following submission to the Quality Committee, the report is published 
on the Trust’s public website. 
 

 

Summary of key points 

Mortality review processes have adapted over the last year in response to 
increasing numbers of deaths due to the COVID-19 pandemic, while still meeting 
the national remit.  
 
This report reminds the Quality Committee of the evolution of these processes and 
presents learning and actions from mortality reviews carried out in Quarter 2.  
Areas for improvement emerging from reviews include advance care planning and 
missed opportunities to identify end of life, medicines issues, and general 
documentation and team communication.  The age, gender and ethnicity of all 
patients dying with COVID-19 are now collected and this quarter’s data is included 
in the report although this data set is not of sufficient size or breadth to be 
statistically significant on its own.  All our mortality and ethnicity data feeds into 
larger national and regional data sets. 
 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 2.8 

Agenda Item Title:  Learning from Deaths Quarterly Report 

Presenting Officer:  Dr Sarah Phillips, Medical Director 

Action – this paper is for: 
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All Trust HCAI COVID-19 inpatient deaths will be reviewed in line with national 
guidance with a focus on generating insights to underpin effective and sustainable 
improvements in care to reduce future risks to patients and engagement of duty of 
candour.  There have been no nosocomial cases resulting in death during Quarter 
2. 

 

Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee or Board 

To note the report for assurance. 

 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local 
policy or procedural change, local impacts (service or 
system) or a procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. 
 
 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
  

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

      

 

Name: 
 

Dr Sarah Phillips    Job title: Medical Director 

Telephone 
number: 
 

07391 861077 Email sarahphillips4@nhs.net 
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1. Introduction 
 
Kent Community Care Foundation Trust (KCHFT) uses the structured judgement 
review method to assess medical records and comment on the specific phases of 
care in the period before an inpatient death occurred. In line with national guidance 
on learning from deaths, mortality data is published quarterly and learning points 
recorded.  This data includes the total number of community inpatient deaths and 
those deaths the Trust has subjected to case record review.  Of those deaths 
reviewed, the Trust report how many deaths were judged more likely than not to 
have been due to problems in care.  
 
2. Community Inpatient Deaths Reported during Quarter 2 2021-2022: Results 

and Analysis 
 
During Q2 2021-2022, eight deaths were reported at community inpatient sites. In 
the previous quarter, Q1 2021-2022, eight deaths were reported.   
 

Total Number of Comminity Hospital Inpatient Deaths Reviewed - Inclunding 
Deaths Occuring <28 days post Transfer of Care (ToC) July – September 2021 

Total Number of Inpatient 
Community Hosptials 

Deaths 

Inpatient Community 
Hosptials Deaths 

Reviewed 

Total Number of deaths 
considered more likely 

than not due to problems 
in care 

Sept. August July Sept. August July Sept. August July 

4 4 0 4 0 5 0 0 0 

Quarter 
2 

Prev. 

Quarter 

(Q1) 

2021– 

2022 

(YTD*) 

Quarter 
2 

Prev. 

Quarter 

(Q1) 

2021–

2022 

(YTD) 

Quarter 
2 

Prev. 

Quarter 

(Q1) 

2021-

2022 

(YTD) 

8 8 17 9 21 68 0 0 0 

   

This Year 
(YTD) 

Last Year This Year 
(YTD) 

Last Year This Year 
(YTD) 

Last Year 

17 179 26 177 0 0 

*(YTD) Year To date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Learning from Deaths Report Quarter 2 
July – September 2021 
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2 

Number of Community Hospital deaths reported  Q2 2021-
2022 

YTD 

East - Deal  2 5 

East – Faversham Cottage Hospital  1 1 

East - Westview  1 1 

East – Whitstable and Tankerton  4 7 

East – Queen Victoria Memorial Hospital 
(Dover) 

 0 1 

West - Edenbridge  0 0 

West - Hawkhurst  0 0 

West - Sevenoaks  0 0 

West - Tonbridge   0 1 

Total 8 17 

 

Community Hospital Inpatient Mortality Data  

Deaths reviewed by SJR (%) 100% 

Gender (%) Female 
                    Male 

62.5 
37.5  

Age range (years) 77-97  

Mean Age (years) 87.87 

Ethnicity (%) White British  
                      Not Stated 

75% 
25% 

Length of stay range (days) 13-53 

Length of stay mean (days) 23.13 

Number of cases where resuscitation documentation not in 
place at time of death 

0 

COVID-19 deaths recorded 1 

Cause of Deaths including Frailty and Advanced Frailty  5 

 
The coroner was consulted for one death with respect to a pathological fracture 
following a fall prior to admission for which the outcome is outstanding.   
 
The Medical examiner process was introduced for all community hospitals in East 
Kent in May 2021.  Since implementation, the Medical Examiner has not made a 
recommendation for further review of any inpatient death.  However, all inpatient 
deaths have been continued to be reviewed by the Structured Judgement Review 
(SJR) process in accordance with Trust policy. 
 
Causes of death included Ischaemic Heart Disease, Acute Myocardial Infarction and 
Coronary Artery Disease, Bilateral Infected Leg Ulcers and Peripheral Vascular 
Disease, Urinary Tract Infection and Frailty. 
 
No deaths in Q2 were judged to be potentially avoidable due to problems in care and 
there was no evidence that any patient death was contributed to by unsafe practice 
arising from mismanagement or misuse of controlled drugs.   
 
One case in Q2 was judged as poor for ongoing care due to lack of review of Do Not 
Attempt Resuscitation (DNACPR) documentation and delayed implantable 
cardioverter- defibrillator deactivation prior to death.  Two cases; one from Westview 
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3 

and one from Whitstable and Tankerton hospital received scores of excellent across 
all phases of care with five cases judged excellent for end of life care.   
 

Spread of Scores Awarded for the Phases of Care of The Community Hospital 
Deaths in Q2                                                                                                                                                 

Phase of care  Grading 

Very 
Poor 

Poor Adequate Good Excellent 

Admission & Initial Care Phase 0 0 1 5 2 

Ongoing Care Phase 0 1 1 4 2 

End of Life (EoL) Care Phase 0 0 1 2 5 

Overall Care Phase 0 0 2 4 2 

Patient record quality 0 0 3 3 2 

 
3. Evidence of Good Practice recognised in Community Hospital reviews  
 
49 elements of good practice have been recorded from the reviews from deaths in 
Q2, the majority relating to good and excellent care given during the end of life 
phase. Feedback included; extensive assessment was completed by the 
Physiotherapist, thoughtful holistic personal care given team member sitting with the 
patient and music playing in the back ground, fantastic communication throughout 
with patient’s daughter, good evidence of family involvement and communication, 
evidence of good response to discomfort of the patient and measures that were able 
to settle the patient. Four compliments from community hospital patients’ relatives 
have been received via the Medical Examiner route.  Recognition of good care was 
received from Coroner’s Inquest for the Edenbridge Community Hospital Staff 
relating to a community death in Q1.   
 
4. Learning from Mortality Reviews for Community Hospital Deaths 
 
None of the deaths reported in Q2 2021/22 were considered more likely than not due 
to problems in care.   
 

Themes Identified for Learning from Deaths Q2 2021/22 

Themes Identified for learning Comments and actions 

1. Problems in assessment, investigation of diagnosis 
Including assessment of pressure ulcer risk, Ventricular Tachycardia (VT) risk, history of falls 

Nothing to Report 

2. Problems with medication including administration of oxygen 

Use of a symptom assessment chart recommended to capture and monitor for pattern and 
effectiveness of treatment.  

Lack of evidence on Electronic Patient Record (EPR) of use of symptom control chart to track 
and monitor effectiveness of interventions. 

3. Problems related to treatment and management plan 
Lack of up to date DNACPR and not evident in 
documentation if Next of Kin (NoK) had been 
involved in decisions as capacity concerns noted.  
Emphasis that DNACRP documentation should be 
viewed as a continuous ongoing conversation.  

RiO template has been updated to include flag 
for Implantable Cardioverter-Defibrillators 
(ICDs). Wider project on pathway for planned 
ICD deactivation remains on End of Life Care 
Steering Group (EoLCSG) action log. 

Themes Identified for Learning from Deaths Q2 2021/22 
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Themes Identified for learning Comments and actions 

3. Problems related to treatment and management plan 

Patient could have benefited from syringe driver 
for Just in Case (JIC) medication. 

Good practice to have syringe driver 
medication prescribed and ready to go just in 
case patient rapidly deteriorates and these 
are needed quickly.  However, in this case the 
clinicians did a good job in balancing the 
family and patients wishes and concerns of 
possible related drowsiness. Patient’s pain 
was regularly reviewed and assessed. 

Lack of pro-active management regarding 
patients ICD as delay in device being made 
inactive. Other avenues for disabling the device 
i.e. with magnets should have been pursued.  
The use of a magnet is advocated for any 
patient who has an active ICD at end of life.  
Although a patient does not receive a shock 
from the device at end of life, this cannot be 
guaranteed. The aim of the magnet would be to 
prevent an inappropriate shock.   

All hospitals have received magnets as back 
up should this situation arise in the future.  
 
Cardiology nurse specialist team have been 
tasked with developing a staff information 
video. 

A review of DNACPR should have taken place.  
Emphasis that DNACRP documentation should 
be viewed as a continuous ongoing 
conversation. 

 

4. Problems with infection management 

To ensure that admission is not delayed due to waiting for Covid 19 swab results - by 
documenting evidence of discussions and/or consideration of side room availability and 
suitability against patients needs. 
 

5. Problems related to invasive procedure 

Nothing to Report 
 

6. Problems in clinical monitoring 

Earlier recognition of lack of progress, and updating/changing plans could have improved patient 
care. 

Use of a symptom assessment chart recommended to capture and monitor for pattern and 
effectiveness of treatment. 

Highly recommend RiO documentation as a priority rather than paper notes.  An Anticipatory 
Care Plan (ACP) template started and autosaved without being completed.  To utilise Symptom 
assessment charts to evidence that symptoms were responded too. 
 

7 problems in resuscitation following cardiac or respiratory arrest 

Northing to Report 
 

8. Problems of any other type not fitting other categories 

All documentation including medication charts to 
be available for viewing on patients RiO record. 
 

 

Themes Identified for Learning from Deaths Q2 2021/22 
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Themes Identified for learning Comments and actions 

8. Problems of any other type not fitting other categories 

Staff to be empowered to challenge conflicting 
care management plans as in this case the 
conflict of DNACPR and active ICD.   

Improved communication needed regarding 
patient at EoL care – specifically highlighting 
patient approaching end of life with an active 
defibrillator (ICD) arranging with cardiology 
department the most appropriate time and 
method for deactivating the device, with 
consent of the patient.  Case discussed at the 
Transfer of Care Meeting for sharing of 
feedback.  

The use of section one of the last days of life 
assessment and care plan using the priorities of 
care, could have been used to pull all the 
actions taken and recorded in the progress 
notes together. 

 

To upload all revised ACP documents.  Updated 
Treatment Escalation Plan (TEP) and DNACPR 
decision form not uploaded to EPR to review. 

 

 
A total of 20 areas of improvement were identified from the eight community hospital 
inpatient deaths during Q2 that have been collated and reviews closed.  No cases in 
Q2 were judged to be potentially avoidable due to problems in care and there was no 
evidence that any patient death was contributed to by unsafe practice arising from 
mismanagement or misuse of controlled drugs.   
 

Number of themes identified from mortality reviews of deaths occurring in each month (in 
line with Royal College Physicians categories) 

 

Areas of Improvement Categories 
Jul-
21 

Aug-
21 

Sep-
21 

Total 
YTD 

Problems in assessment, investigation of diagnosis including 
assessment of pressure ulcer (PU) risk, Ventricular 
tachycardia (VT) risk, history of falls        6 

Ineffective recognition of end of life 0 0 0 4 

Issues relating to physical needs 0 1 0 2 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems with medication including administration of oxygen       8 

Issues relating to medications and/or symptom control 0 3 0 8 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems related to treatment and management plan       23 

Lack of involvement in care decisions 0 1 0 2 

Lack of respect of patient and family wishes in decision making 0 0 0 0 

Lack of documentation around capacity and best interests 0 1 0 2 

Issues relating to Personalised Care Plans and other 
documentation 0 1 8 17 

Issues relating to Fast Track and palliative care support 0 0 2 2 

Number of themes identified from mortality reviews of deaths occurring in each month (in 
line with RCP categories) 
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Areas of Improvement Categories 
Jul-
21 

Aug-
21 

Sep-
21 

Total 
YTD 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 1 

Problems with infection management 0 1 0 1 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems related to invasive procedures 0 0 0 0 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems related to clinical monitoring       1 

Reversible causes of deterioration not considered/excluded and/or 
documented 0 0 0 1 

Issues relating to nutrition and hydration 0 0 0 0 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems in resuscitation following cardiac or respiratory 
arrest 0 0 0 0 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems of any other type not fitting other categories       11 

Issues relating to emotional, psychological, social, spiritual, cultural 
and religious needs 0 0 0 1 

Issues relating to support of families and those important to the 
dying person 0 0 0 4 

Patient related communication issues 0 0 0 1 

Team related communication issues 0 2 0 5 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Number of deaths with completed reviews 0 4 4 17 

Total number of issues arising  0 10 10 50 

 
Each problem is mapped to Royal College of Physicians problem categories and 
recorded against each hospital.  The problem data for the year to date being 
displayed in the chart below. 
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5. Community Deaths Mortality Data Q2 2021/22 
 

Community Mortality Data 

Number of Q2 Q1 

Community Deaths reported via Datix  18 13 

Community Deaths referred for full SJR  10 2 

Complaints  7 2 

Patient Safety Raised SIs 2 2 

Referred to Coroner 6 1 

 
6. Feedback and Lessons learned from Community Deaths Completed in 

Q2.  
 

A total of 52 areas of improvement were identified from the eight community deaths 
during Q2 that have been collated and reviews closed at the time of report.  No 
cases in Q2 were judged to be potentially avoidable due to problems in care and 
there was no evidence that any patient death was contributed to by unsafe practice 
arising from mismanagement or misuse of controlled drugs.  
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Number of themes identified from mortality reviews (including Datix investigations, After 
Action Reviews (AARs) and Coroner Inquests) of deaths occurring in each month in line 

with Royal College of Physicians categories 

Areas of Improvement Categories 
Jul-
21 

Aug-
21 

Sep-
21 

Total 
YTD 

Problems in assessment, investigation of diagnosis 
including assessment of PU risk, VT risk, history of falls        12 

Ineffective recognition of end of life 2 4 2 8 

Issues relating to physical needs 1 0 2 4 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 1 

Problems with medication including administration of 
oxygen       10 

Issues relating to medications and/or symptom control 1 5 2 10 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 1 

Problems related to treatment and management plan       32 

Lack of involvement in care decisions 0 0 0 3 

Lack of respect of patient and family wishes in decision making 0 0 0 0 

Lack of documentation around capacity and best interests 0 1 2 3 

Issues relating to Personalised Care Plans and other 
documentation 1 10 6 26 

Issues relating to Fast Track and palliative care support 0 0 0 0 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 1 

Problems with infection management 0 1 0 1 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems related to invasive procedures 0 0 0 1 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems related to clinical monitoring       4 

Reversible causes of deterioration not considered/excluded 
and/or documented 1 2 0 4 

Issues relating to nutrition and hydration 0 0 0 0 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 1 

Problems in resuscitation following cardiac or respiratory 
arrest 0 0 0 0 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Problems of any other type not fitting other categories       21 

Issues relating to emotional, psychological, social, spiritual, 
cultural and religious needs 0 0 0 0 

Issues relating to support of families and those important to the 
dying person 1 1 2 6 

Patient related communication issues 0 1 0 2 

Team related communication issues 3 1 0 13 

Total number of above leading to harm 0 0 0 0 

Number of deaths this month with completed reviews 
2 4 2 

Total 
YTD 

Total number of issues arising  10 26 16 81 

 

Actions taken as a result of mortality feedback 
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Problems related to treatment and management plan 

Consider reviewing the referral form to add specific questions relating to end of life care to 
ensure a clear handover of patient care, enabling continuation of care. 

The implementation of the Medical examiner service in East Kent for deaths in the community 
will support increased communication and discussion of when death certification is required for a 
person receiving care from other providers. 

Problems in clinical monitoring 

Evaluate and adjust current system for identifying patients not seen in the last 28 days - Action: 
more robust system implemented (Weekly EoL patient reviews by District Nursing (DN) team 
now instigated with spreadsheet available on the K-drive to share information about patients 
across teams to improve collaborative working.) 

To liaise with Consultant Nurse for EoL to discuss if other roles would have capacity to engage 
in EoL training this could help staff to more effectively identify the dying phases approaching 
therefore using the sudden death pathway/protocol only when justified. 

Problems of any other type not fitting other categories 

Support offered with how to effectively record progress notes especially when referring to and 
the phrasing of conversations containing conflicting views from involved parties trust record 
keeping policy and standards will be shared with community staff via quality leads to individual 
teams, manager's meeting and local LCRMs. TAPs have an e-learning course named - Record 
Keeping: Documentation and The Law e-learning which teams can use as a support tool for 
putting the policy into practice. 

 
 

7. Learning Disability (LD) Mortality Reviews Report 
 

LeDeR Q2 

report.docx.pdf
 

 
Dr Lisa Scobbie, Deputy Medical Director   
Tatum Mallard, Mortality Review Project Lead  
December 2021 
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1. Quarterly Update 
 

The LeDeR platform was updated and went live on 1st July 2021 with all the reviewers being 

fully trained and had access by end of July 2021. 

There were some initial system errors which caused delay in submitting some reviews 

however, this did not cause any to be in breach within their 6-month period.  

 

Below is a flow chart which demonstrates the new LeDeR Review process that has been in 

place since July 2021; 

2. Completion of Reviews 
 

To date we have completed a total of 113 reviews for the time frame July 2020 – September 

2021, 52 of these were in Q2 (deaths recorded in Jan-March 21) with a staff capacity of 

100% and the trajectory being overachieved every month. There is an exception of 2 

reviews; one August 21 review is in breach due to awaiting a coroner’s request – this has 

been agreed with Claire Axon-Peters, and one September 21 breach due to awaiting 

Hospital notes (end of October). 

Below, the table shows the number of reviews completed for Quarter 2, deaths recorded 

Jan-Mar 2021. There was an increase in the number of deaths for January, at 27 deaths 

compared to the average of 10 per month. 
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3. Personal Demographic Trends  
 

Gender 

The table below shows that there were more Female to Male deaths in Q2, unlike Q1 where 

there were more Male deaths than Female. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20, 57%

15, 43%

Gender Q1

Q1 Male Q1 Female

25, 48%27, 52%

Gender Q2

Male Female

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

27 14 12

27 13 9

0 0 1

0 0 0

0 1 1

0 0 1

0 1 1

Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
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Age 

The average age at death for Q2, based on deaths in Jan-March 21 combined was 57-67 

years old, the same as Q1 (Oct – Dec 20 deaths) 

 

 

 

Ethnicity  

Out of the 52 reviews completed in Q2, there were 51 recorded as White British. 
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Severity of LD 

In Q2, the highest level of LD was ‘Severe’ with 19, much like Q1 with 11 deaths recorded as 

having a ‘Severe’ LD. 

 

4. Causes of Deaths 
 

The graphs show data for Q2 and for data combined Oct 20 – Live. 

The 5 main causes of death for Q2 (deaths in Jan-March 21) were Covid-19 with 29 deaths 

recorded, Pneumonia (both Aspiration and Bronchopneumonia) were at 4, Sepsis at 3 and 

Biological Frailty at 1. 

For data combined, the top cause of death was Covid-19, following that it was Pneumonia 

(both Aspiration and Bronchopneumonia), then Sepsis and Cancer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10, 29%

10, 29%

11, 31%

0, 0%
4, 11%

Level of LD - Q1 

Mild Moderate

Severe Profound/ Multiple

Not Known
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Quarterly Comparison 

The graph below shows the annual number of deaths across each quarter. 

2019-2020 displays from Oct 19 – Sept 2020 deaths 

2020-2021 displays from Oct 20 – Sept 2021 deaths 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Place of Death 
 

 The most common place of death for Q2 was in Hospital with 33 recorded out of 52 deaths, 

Q1 also had Hospital as the highest place of death with 21 out of 35 deaths. 

21

7

5

1 1
0 0

0
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10
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20

25

Hospital Residential/
Nursing Home

Family Home Hospice Supported
Living

Other Don't Know

Place of Death - Q1
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6. Best Practice 
 

There continues to be an increase in the use of TEP. Reviewers have reported positive 

practice around advanced care planning and EOL plans.  

The reviewers identified good multi-disciplinary working which has led to continuity of care 

for the person. 

There is an increase in reasonable adjustments for people while inpatients in hospital. E.g. 

side rooms offered to ease persons anxiety and this also enabled family and carers to visit. 

There continues to be an increase in the uptake of Annual Health Checks. 

 

7. Issues Reported 
 

Below is an overview of the area of issues reported for Q2. There was a total of 134 issues 

recorded for the 52 deaths. 

The main issues seen were: 

 Annual Health Checks 

 Documentation 

 Screening 

 

33

10
9

0 0 0 0
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Hopsital Residential/
Nursing
Home

Family Home Hospice Supported
Living

Other Don't Know

Place of Death - Q2

Le
ar

ni
ng

 F
ro

m
 D

ea
th

s 
R

ep
or

t

Page 155 of 189



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Top 3 Issues – Deep Dive 

Annual Health Checks 

The most common issue was around Annual Health Checks. Here is a breakdown of each 

issue and a total in each category. 

There were 14 recorded issues around Annual Health Checks out of 52 deaths; 7 of which 

state where the client was not invited. 

There were 20 cases where there were issues around an LD Action Plan; 12 of these were 

where the Action Plan was not formulated and 7 where they hadn’t been completed. 
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Annual Health Checks – Combined Data (Oct 20 – Live) 

Out of 95 completed reviews on the Dashboard, 79 had issues around Annual Health 

Checks or Health Action Plans. 

32 of these issues were between Oct-Dec 2020 

❖ 5 in October out of 5 deaths 

❖ 9 in November out of 8 deaths 

❖ 18 in December out of 22 deaths 

34 issues were between Jan-March 2021 

❖ 18 in January out of 27 deaths 

❖ 7 in February out of 14 deaths 
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❖ 9 in March out of 11 deaths 

13 issues were between Apr-Jun 2021 

❖ 11 in April out of 11 deaths 

❖ None in May and 2 in June 

Here is the breakdown and number of each 

issue. 

19 out of the 36 Annual Health Check issues 

did not have an Annual Health Check 

completed in the last 12 months and 12 had 

not been invited. 

Out of 43 issues around LD Action Plans, 24 

had not been formulated from the Annual 

Health Check and 18 had not been completed 

at all. 

 

 

 

Documentation 

The second most common issue was 

around documentation. This includes 

Hospital and Communication Passports. 

There were 6 DISDAT issues recorded 

where all deaths recorded had no 

DISDAT’s in place. 7 Hospital Passport 

related issues and 5 of these were 

recorded as having none in place. Below 

is the issue breakdown. 

 

 

 

 

6

7

4

2
1

Documentation Totals

DISDAT Hospital Passport

Communication Passport Personalised Care Plan

Discharge Plan
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Screening 

The third most common issue for 

Q2 was around Screening with 17 

issues out of the 52 deaths 

recorded. 5 of these had no age-

related screening carried out and 5 

with no/ limited screening. 

There were also issues recorded 

around GP’s not following up after 

screening, gender related 

screening not being carried out and 

MCA’s (Mental Capacity 

Assessments) not being followed.  

Below is the issue breakdown. 

 

DISDAT
6

No DISDAT

6

DISDAT out of date

0

DISDAT not being shared

0

Other

0

Hospital Passport

7

No Hospital Passport

5

Hospital Passport out of date

2

HP not read/ shared with team

0

Other

0

Documentation Breakdown Communication Passport
4

No Communication Passport

3

CP out of date 0

CP not read/ shared with team 1

Other

0

Personalised Care Plan 2

No Personalised Care Plan

1

No Individualised Care Plan 

supported by provider

0

Other

1

Discharge Plan

1

Discharge plan not completed 0

Lack of communcation 

regarding discharge plan 0

Other 1
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GP Surgeries – Deep Dive 

The below table shows the top 4 GP Surgeries that had the most issues and the total 

number of deaths from Oct 20 – Live. These issues include anything around Annual Health 

Checks and LD Action Plans, Screening, DNACPR and not receiving their Covid patient 

shielding letter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Screening
17

Limited/ no screening

5

No age related screening

5

No gender related 

screening
2

MCA not followed

1

Declined - personal 

choice

0

Not followed up with GP

2

System error (no flagged 

as LD) 0

Other

2

Screening
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The GP Surgeries breakdown of issues can be found below: 

 

 

 

8. Learning 

With creating a new Learning Dashboard with quarterly breakdowns, we can clearly find 

local learning and common issues. We are now able to identify the specific issues relating to 

each subject, i.e. Documentation issues – whether the issue was with not having a Hospital 

Passport, or it not being followed. Having this allows us to address these issues more 

efficiently and what actions we can put in place to resolve them. 

 

9. 3 Year Plan 

Below shows the Kent & Medway LD and Autism 3-year system development plan 

Year: 2021 - 2022  

LTP 
Commitment 

Objective(s) How and What will be 
delivered 

Timelines 
& Lead 

Update 

Maintain 
Timely LeDeR 
reviews 

The LeDeR model 
has been adopted 
and implemented in 

The LeDeR reviews in 
Kent and Medway have 
been commissioned 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 

 

GP Surgery TOTAL ISSUES

AHC Not 

completed in last 

12 

months/delayed

AHC - Poor 

quality

Action plan not 

completed

Action plan 

not 

formulated 

from AHC

DNACPR - 

Other

Limited/ no 

screening

No age 

related 

screening

Declined - 

personal 

choice

No patient 

sheilding letter 

sent

Pencester Surgery
13 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 2

GP Surgery TOTAL ISSUES Number of Deaths Not invited

Action plan 

not 

formulated 

from AHC

DNACPR 

inappropriately 

completed

No age 

related 

screening

No patient 

sheilding letter 

sent

Snodland Medical Practice
11

3
3 3 1 3 1

GP Surgery TOTAL ISSUES Number of Deaths
AHC - Poor 

quality

Action plan not 

completed

Action plan 

not 

formulated 

from AHC

Care 

provider 

not 

consulted

No gender 

related 

screening

Other

No patient 

sheilding letter 

sent

Other

Martello Health Centre
7

4
1 2 1 1 1 1 0 0

GP Surgery TOTAL ISSUES Number of Deaths

AHC Not 

completed in last 

12 

months/delayed

Action plan not 

completed

DNACPR 

paperwork not 

able to be found

Care 

provider 

not 

consulted

No age 

related 

screening

No gender 

related 

screening

Not followed up 

with GP

No patient 

sheilding letter 

sent

Amherst Medical Practice
9

5
1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1
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the Kent and 
Medway to deliver a 
systemic review and 
learning process for 
the system 

through the provider 
collaborative to be 
undertaken in a timely 
manner to ensure that 
learning is shared to 
inform care provision and 
safe practice  

Secure 
funding to 
maintain 
LeDeR 

The current LeDeR 
model is being put 
though a finance 
and performance 
committee to ensure 
that it is effectively 
resource to meet the 
system need 

The model has been sent 
to the finance and 
performance committee 
for financial agreement on 
the model.  The model 
has been agreed and 
finances secured 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 

 

Enhance 
system 
learning 

The LeDeR reviews 
will provide learning 
to the whole system 
on an ongoing basis 
to inform system 
development and 
integrated Co-
design 

Learning from LeDeR is 
being shared across the 
system and tracked.  
There is a plan to audit 
findings through thematic 
analysis once the LeDeR 
team is established to 
inform future provision. 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 

 

Support and 
develop the 
LeDeR 
Steering 
Group 

The LeDeR steering 
group is chaired by 
the Associate 
Director for Nursing 
and Quality 
Improvement for 
KMCCG. The 
steering group will 
adopt an 
improvement focus 

Review and adaption to 
the Steering group using 
the guidance provided in 
Learning from Lives and 
Deaths- People with 
Learning Disability and 
Autistic People (LeDeR) 
2021. This will address 
the quarterly reporting 
request from NHSEI. 

LeDeR 
steering 
group  

 

Influence and 
learn from 
regional and 
national 
health 
improvement 

KMCCG Nursing 
and Quality 
Associate Director 
will be a member of 
the regional Health 
Inequalities Steering 
Group, which will 
consider LeDeR, 
AHCs, 
STOMP/STAMP. 
The Associate 
Director for Learning 
Disabilities and 
Autism Programme 
will also be a 
member 

The Health Inequalities 
Steering group will 
provide feedback for the 
Quality Improvement 
Board that in turn will 
inform the Regional 
Programme Board. A 
mapping exercise will be 
completed when the 
meetings are established 
to ensure feedback and 
feed-in opportunities to 
key partners from the 
Kent and Medway 
system. 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 
  

 

Develop 
LeDeR 
Programme 

System approach to 
implementing and 
maintaining 
compliance with the 
national LeDeR 

• The establishment 
of a local 
governance 
group/panel to 
include individuals 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 
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policy.  Develop plan 
for new quality 
assurance 
structures and 
processes by 
30/09/21 and fully 
operation by 
01/02/22  
 

with lived 
experience  

• Review and agree 
reporting and 
governance 
structures so 
LeDeR 
governance sits 
within mainstream 
ICS quality 
surveillance and 
governance 
arrangements. 

• A named 
executive lead as 
SRO with 
accountability for 
LeDeR from 
across the ICS 

• Agree data metric 
and baseline 
measurements to 
capture outcomes 
from LeDeR 
focused on  

• Positive 
experiences of 
process for 
bereaved families  

• Decreasing 
numbers of 
preventable 
deaths 

• Greater use of 
reasonable 
adjustments in 
health and care 
services 

• Better outcomes 
as a result of local 
service 
improvement 
projects 

• Increased 
awareness of the 
main causes of 
death amongst 
health and care 
staff 

Improved data – 
themes/trends of life and 
death experiences with 
specific focus on BAME 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 F
ro

m
 D

ea
th

s 
R

ep
or

t

Page 163 of 189



Developing 
LeDeR 

Assess the inclusion 
of autistic service 
users in the LeDeR 
program and the 
potential learning 
from this Cohort 
See attached action 
plan for details and 
associated timelines 
for completion of 
actions  
 
 

Inclusion of autistic 
people in LeDeR – data 
mapping to be undertaken 
in Q2-Q3 2021/22 to 
understand likely demand 
against LeDeR team 
capacity and possible 
options for inclusion of 
this cohort of these 
deaths from Q4 2021/22 - 
2022/23 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 

 

Reducing 
inequalities in 
LeDeR 

Focussed reviews 
for BAME and 
autistic people to be 
implemented 

Introduction of ‘focused 
reviews’ from 01/06/21 – 
will be undertaken as part 
of normal practice for all 
BAME individuals and for 
autistic people. 

LeDeR 
steering 
group 

 

LeDeR 
monitoring 

Reporting process 
for LeDeR has been 
agreed for the 
program in 
collaboration with 
NHSE. 

Annual reporting process 
agreed and 2020/21 
report completed and 
circulated to all relevant 
parties including NHSE by 
31/06/21   

LeDeR 
steering 
group 

 

Year: 2022 - 2023  

Reducing 
inequalities in 
LeDeR 

Increased reporting 
of deaths from 
people from relevant 
Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic 
communities within 
the ICS 
proportionate and 
relative to the 
communities living 
within that 
geography 

Data will be pulled 
through the LEDER 
programme through to 
Public Health who will in 
collaboration with system 
develop an action plan to 
focus interventions in the 
BAME community 

LeDeR 
Steering 
Group  
 
 
Q1/22  

 

LeDeR 
monitoring 
 

Senior ICS leaders, 
including local 
authority partners 
are involved in 
governance 
meetings where 
issues found in local 
reviews are 
discussed and 
actions agreed 
collaboratively, to 
support joined-up 
actions to improve 
services, reduce 
health inequalities 

Detailed data will form 
part of contract 
compliance and contract 
levers processes  in 2022  

KMCCG 
Associate 
Director for 
LD&A 
Programme 
 
Q1/22  
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and reduce 
premature mortality. 
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What is the purpose of the paper and the ask of the Committee or Board? 
(include reference to any prior board or committee review) Has the paper been to any other 
committee? 

The Integrated Performance Report is produced to give an overview of performance 
against a number of national, contractual and internal key performance indicators. 
This report is presented with the use of Statistical Process Control (SPC) charts. It 
should be noted that the full Finance, Workforce and Quality reports are presented at 
their respective committees. The report has been produced in collaboration with the 
Executive Team and their support teams.  
 
 

Summary of key points 

  
There are 10 KPIs (26.3%) moving favourable in month and 16 (42.1%) moving 
unfavourably whilst 12 (31.6%) are in normal variation.  
 
There are 4 KPIs consistently failing target (target outside of control limits) which are: 

 KPI 2.9 LTC/ICT Response Times Met 

 KPI 2.14 AHP (Non-Consultant Led) Access Waiting Times 

 KPI 4.2 Income & Expenditure - Surplus (%) 

 KPI 4.5 Percentage based on value of Service Lines with deficits greater than 
5%.  

 
Of the 7 indicators not measured by SPC charts, 100% (7) are achieving target  
 
Quality  
 

 11 lapses in care during December, with a further 1 meeting the SI criteria. 
(negative variation).  

 During December 2021, there was one avoidable incident that resulted in low 
harm to the patient 

 55 reported medication incidents were considered avoidable to KCHFT during 
December 2021 compared to 40 incidents in November and 56 in October 

Committee / Meeting Title: Board Meeting - Part 1 (Public) 

Date of Meeting: 09 February 2022 

Agenda Number: 3.1 

Agenda Item Title:  Integrated Performance Report 

Presenting Officer: Gill Jacobs, Acting Director of Finance 

Action – this paper is for: 
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2021. 
 
Workforce 

 Turnover in December 2021 has increased to 16.82% and the highest rate for 
the last 24 months. This is the seventh consecutive month that this metric is 
reported above the target. 

 At 5.7% the in-month sickness absence rate for December 2021 continues the 
upward trend from March 2021 and now at the sickness absence levels 
experienced in December 2020 and January 2021, remaining above the mean 
and the target. 

 From June 2021 the Vacancy rate has continued to decrease, in December 
2021 we have reported a decrease to 4.5% this is the lowest vacancy rate 
since March 2021. The Vacancy rate continues to remain below the revised 
target of 6% and now the mean 

 
Finance 

 The Trust is in a breakeven position to the end of December.  The cumulative 
financial performance is comprised an overspend on pay of £5,010k (including 
£6,934k on the covid vaccination programme) offset by underspends for non-
pay and depreciation/interest of £108k and £266k respectively and an over-
recovery on income of £4,636k. 

 The Trust achieved CIPs of £2,674k to the end of December against a risk 
rated plan of £3,311k which is £637k (19.2%) behind target. 

 Capital spend to December was £3,221k, against a YTD plan of £6,271k (51% 
achieved). The reported year to date underspend is primarily due to the 
delayed commencement of Estates and IT schemes. As at M9, the full year 
forecast is £8,687k, with £4,933k being internally funded and £3,753k being 
funded by PDC. The Trust expects to utilise the forecast in full with a number 
of o/s projects or new schemes being completed in the final quarter. The full 
year variance of £4,011k is the net effect of the redistribution of the £4,924k 
ring-fenced funding held on behalf of the K&M system for system priorities 
plus the additional spend forecast (£251k) for the KMCR project and new 
external funding applications totalling forecast spend of £661k. The £3,753k 
PDC funding represents the approved external funding applications for the 
Kent & Medway Care Record project (£3,092k), Electronic Prescribing and 
Medicines Administration system (£319k), Robotic Process Automation 
(£130k), WoundMatrix (Digital Health Partnership) (£130k) and Video 
Consultation (TIF Funding) (£82k). 

 Temporary staff costs for December were £2,109k, representing 12.8% of the 
pay bill. Of the temporary staffing usage in December, £427k related to 
external agency and locums, representing 2.6% of the pay bill. Contracted 
WTE increased by 10 to 4,333 in post in December which includes 15 posts 
funded by capital projects. Vacancies remained constant at 205 in December 
which was 4.5% of the budgeted establishment. 
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Operations 
 

 Expected annual target for the NHS Health Checks for 2021/22 is 6802 which 

covers both KCHFT core team and 3rd party providers. We are on track to 

achieve/exceed in both areas. 

 Stop Smoking Quits are showing continued strong performance marginally 

below trajectory (98%) with a quit rate of over 55%. Waiting list remains at 0.  

 The Health Visiting new birth visit performance is experiencing normal 

variation with positive performance (92.6%) above target and the mean. 

 During Month 9 (December 2021) KCHFT carried out 153,882 clinical 

contacts. For the year to December 2021 KCHFT are 2% above plan for all 

services (some services have contractual targets, some are against an 

internal plan). The only negative variance is within Dental and Planned Care 

Services (-12.5%). 

 We continue to achieve the consultant-led Referral to Treatment (RTT) 

pathway target of 92% of patients beginning treatment within 18 weeks, with 

the Month 9 position being at 100%, with only 120 patients (3.6%) out of 3,319 

currently waiting longer than 12 weeks.  

 Diagnostics waits (6 week target) for paediatric audiology has failed the 99% 

target for M9 which was expected due to staffing challenges. This is not 

expected to be a sustained position. 

 2 hour urgent responses - The level of performance for 2-hour rapid 

responses has been negatively impacted by the move to RIO and the revised 

way in which data has been captured for this metric. As part of this, an 

improved process for exclusions (inappropriate requests for a 2-hour 

response) is now in place and performance should see an improvement. This 

is reliant on both timely and accurate completion of a form on RiO named 

GENAD. Support from the business managers is in place to support the teams 

with a target of January 2022 (M10) data being accurate to performance 

levels. 

 Performance for the proportion of patients who are no longer fit to reside has 

been consistently above the mean. The target level continues to be rarely 

achieved in the current climate (twice in the last 18 months) with a worsened 

position at M9 of 26.8%. 

 Bed Occupancy continues to show a varying trend with no periods of special 

cause variation. Levels have stabilised between within the target threshold of 

87-92%, although were down to 85.1% in month 9 as part of increasing step 

down capacity through winter planning. 
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Proposal and/or recommendation to the Committee 
or Board 

The Board is asked to note this report. 
 

If this paper relates to a proposed change linked to any 
of the below, have you completed an equality analysis 
for this paper? 
 
National guidance or legislative change, organisational or 
system redesign, a significant impact to patients, local policy 
or procedural change, local impacts (service or system) or a 
procurement process. 
You can find out more about EAs here on flo 
If not, describe any equality and diversity issues that 
may be relevant. 
 
Protected characteristics are: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 Yes (please 
attach) 
 
 

 No 
(please provide a 
summary of the 
protected 
characteristic 
highlights in your 
paper) 
  
  

Highlights relating to protected characteristics in paper 

High level position described and no decisions required 
 

Name: 
 

  Nick Plummer    Job title: Assistant Director of 
Performance and Business 
Intelligence 

Telephone number: 07823 777 854 Email     nick.plummer@nhs.net 
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